Committed to
healthier living
Annual Report 2019

1. Overview

We provide the nutritious, valued and responsibly
produced food, beverages and brands that
nourish full and active lives, every day.
We are committed to healthier living.
Read What we do on page 2

Committed to
innovation

2.

3.

4.

Overview
What we do

2

Where we operate

4

Read what we do on page 26

Committed to
technology

Strategic Report
Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

12

Read what we do on page 30

Business Review

16

Business Model and Strategy

22

Key Performance Indicators

24

Strategy in Action

26

Sustainability Impact

38

Chairman’s Statement

8

Total Assets

Net Revenue

Committed to
efficiency

(AED Billion)

(AED Billion)

Read what we do on page 34

3.12

2.04

Corporate Governance

Shareholders’ Equity

Net Profit

Corporate Governance Report 2019

46

(AED Billion)

(AED Million)

Board of Directors

48

1.96

137

Executive Committee

54

Directors’ Report

62

2019 Highlights

Financial Statements
Independent Auditor’s Report

66

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

69

Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss

70

Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

71

Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

72

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

73

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

74

Agthia / Annual Report 2019

1

1. Overview

Overview

2.

3.

4.

What we do
Agthia Group is a leading regional food and beverage company based in Abu Dhabi. Established
in 2004 and listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange since 2005, the Group is composed of a
diverse portfolio of world-class integrated businesses and brands. We provide high-quality, trusted
and essential food and beverage products for its continuously growing consumer base across the
UAE, GCC, Europe and the Middle East North Africa region.

Consumer business

Agri business

Agthia’s Consumer Business is composed of several segments in water, beverages and food categories. Water
consists of bottled water and 5-gallon water and the Company produces, markets and distributes Alpin, Al Bayan,
Ice Crystal, Bambini and Delta brands in addition to the UAE’s number one drinking water brand Al Ain Water.
The Company has water production and bottling facilities across UAE and in Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, Oman and
Turkey. Under Beverages, the Company produces, markets and distributes Capri Sun single-serve juice drinks
under a license agreement with the parent company in addition to the Company’s own-brand Al Ain Fresh
fresh juices.

Flour and Animal Feed make Agthia’s Agri Business with UAE’s market leading brands Grand Mills and Agrivita
respectively. The company produces, markets and distributes a multitude of products under each segment
catering for the needs of our nation’s bakeries and animal farmers. In Flour, the company’s products are also
offered directly to retail consumers.
Read more on page 21

Food category comprises of multiple food segments ranging from dairy to frozen and ambient bakery products
to tomato paste and frozen vegetables and to many other convenience food and non-food items under wellknown brand names such as Yoplait, Al Ain and Grand Mills.
Read more on page 17

Our consumer brands
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Netherlands

Where we operate

Russia

Agthia exports to more than 30 countries around the
world. The Company’s assets are located in the UAE,
Saudi Arabia, Oman, Kuwait, Egypt and Turkey.

Scotland
United Kingdom
Ireland

Poland
Hungary

Turkey
Cyprus

Assets
Egypt Sourced products
UAE Sourced products
Turkey Sourced products

Italy

France
Austria
Germany
Sco
Uni
Irel

Kuwait
Bahrain
Saudi Arabia
UAE
Oman
Yemen
Djibouti

Morocco

Libya
Egypt
Tunisia
Canada

Kenya
Somalia

Lebanon
Palestine
Jordan

Italy

France
Austria
Germany
Morocco

Across our manufacturing hubs and
the more than 30 international markets
where our products are sold, Agthia
touches the lives of customers and
consumers with a diverse portfolio of
high-quality brands, providing a strong
foundation for continued growth,
diversification and expansion.
4
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Singapore

Mauritius
Vietnam
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Chairman’s Statement

Strengthening our
value proposition
It is my pleasure to present Agthia’s
annual report and financial statements
for 2019, a year characterized by
accelerating geographical expansion,
innovation and endurance, albeit in
an intensive competitive marketplace.
As the year unfolded, we fine-tuned
our strategic focus to shield our core
businesses domestically and regionally,
while supporting our nation’s vision of
building a sustainable future by inspiring
healthier and happier lives through the
wholehearted choices we offer.

HE Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman

Strengthening our value proposition in
response to the shifting market landscape
Agthia launched a tactical plan to defend
our core in 2019, mapping out a resilient
growth strategy fit for a sustainable future,
as food and beverage market trends
continued to evolve with heightened
competition, complexity and costs.
We solidified our market-leading position
in our water, food and agri business
categories in the UAE, while growing
steadily in our international markets,
reflecting both the trust of our customers
and consumers in our brands and the
affirmative market sentiment towards our
commitment to quality and innovation.
Our operating markets witnessed
significant and sustained price pressure,
with a rise in consumers’ sensitivity to
prices and focus on promotions. However,
consumers also showed heightened
sophistication when it comes to their
food and beverage choices, seeking out
the wholesome quality that is at the heart
of Agthia’s value proposition.
Single-use plastics emerged as a hot topic
in the region, pressuring manufacturers
to adapt to changing regulations. Agthia
was ahead of the curve in that respect, as
we already use 99% recyclable packaging
across all categories, of which 100%
of secondary and tertiary packaging is
oxo-biodegradable. Consumer education
around packaging remains a priority,
as plastic is considered relatively
environmentally friendly versus packaging
alternatives, when collected wisely for
recycling (see chart on page 33).
Additionally, Agthia proactively launched
the region’s first packaging innovation
center in 2019 and disclosed ambitious
plans for all packaging to be 100%
eco-friendly by 2020. We have plans in
place to reduce landfill waste to the lowest
possible levels taking into consideration the
available infrastructure in each country of
operations. We have also committed to
using 10% of PET from recycled sources
and 5% from plant-based sources by 2021.

8

Agthia / Annual Report 2019

Strategically committed to healthier
living across the region
The GCC countries emphasize on their
strategic focus on economic diversification
to promote sustainable development.
This was revealed by the respective
national visions and the increased reforms
to strengthen multiple non-oil sectors,
including Food and Beverage (F&B). Within
the F&B industry, several government
initiatives played an important role in
promoting health awareness and
encouraging the consumer shift towards
value-added and nutritious alternatives.
At the very core of our company lies our
commitment to align with the vision of
GCC governments and to promote the
wellbeing of people through our nutritious
products. In fact, in the UAE we work
hand-in-hand with the Abu Dhabi
Agriculture & Food Safety Authority and
are aligned with the National Food Security
Strategy 2051. As our current offerings
represent about 40% of the items defined
as the National Food Basket, Agthia is well
positioned as a critical historic and future
player in the nation’s food security and a
prominent member of Abu Dhabi’s Food
Security Alliance.
Similarly, while food security remains
the original, purposeful seed of our
company, our relentless pursuit of
innovation is the driving force that helps
our company to grow stronger each year.
As great accomplishments in 2019, we
launched innovative new products to
enhance the health and wellness of
consumers; built the aforementioned
packaging innovation center as part of
our wider commitment to protecting our
environment; and secured partnerships
with international players to collaborate
on innovative ideas for our consumers.
Ultimately, we seek to raise their overall
quality of life through our nutritious,
valued and responsibly produced food,
beverages and brands that nourish full
and active lives.

Robust governance for a sustainable future
Reinforcing Agthia’s focus on effective
compliance, proactive risk mitigation and
robust corporate governance and reflecting
our fundamental focus on creating
sustainable value for our business and all
our stakeholders, we are proud to launch
our inaugural stand-alone Sustainability
Report this year (see Sustainability Impact
section on page 38). Through a broad
range of policies, initiatives and partnerships,
we have made great strides in integrating
environmental, social and governance (ESG)
standards and best practices into all areas
of business, and we remain dedicated
to driving this critical agenda forward
in 2020 and beyond.
Acknowledgements
On behalf of my fellow Board Members,
I would like to express my gratitude to the
Government of Abu Dhabi for its continued
trust and support, and extend my deep
appreciation for their visionary leadership
and wise council to His Highness Sheikh
Khalifa bin Zayed Al Nahyan, President of
the UAE and Supreme Commander of the
UAE Armed Forces, and His Highness
Sheikh Mohammed bin Zayed Al Nahyan,
Crown Prince of Abu Dhabi, Deputy
Supreme Commander of the UAE Armed
Forces, and Chairman of the Abu Dhabi
Executive Council.
I would also like to extend my sincere
appreciation to our management and
dedicated employees for their commitment
and efforts towards achieving the vision
of our company and creating sustainable
value for our shareholders, customers
and consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement continued

Our successful history –
over 40 year establishment
built on a proud heritage
Government-owned and managed company

1978

1981

1990

2004

2017

2018

2019

Flour Mills and
Animal Feed
Company

Animal Feed
production
started

Al Ain Mineral
Water Company
established

Formation of
Emirates Foodstuff
and Mineral
Water Company
(Agthia) as part
of Abu Dhabi
Government’s
privatization
initiative

JV with Anderson
Hay in the UAE

Launch of Al Ain Vitamin D
& Bambini

Launch of Al Ain Zero
Bromat, Al Ain Bag in Box
Water and Flour Vit D

Established by the
late HH Sheikh
Zayed bin Sultan
Al Nahyan

R&D Partnership with Nutreco
United Khaleeji Water factory
commenced production in Kuwait

2016
JV in Kuwait to produce
Al Ain Water
Acquisition of Delta Water
Factory Company in the KSA
Launch of Al Ain ZERO

2007

2006

2005

2015

Acquisition of Ice
Crystal in the UAE

Appointment of new
management

IPO – Listed on
ADX with 49%
of the company
offered to public

Acquisition of Al Bayan
Water Company in the UAE

2008

2009

2010

2012

Acquisition of
Al Ain Vegetable

Egypt Tomato Paste
& Frozen Vegetables
greenfield operation starts

Production and distribution
agreement with Yoplait

Acquisition of water
company (Alpin) in Turkey

Production and distribution
agreement with Capri-Sun
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Driving growth,
innovation and
efficiency
I am proud to look back on a
year in which we maintained
our market leadership in key
categories, demonstrated
resilience and continued to
prioritize the development of
our people, while reaffirming
our commitment to our community
initiatives and the food security
of our nation for the benefit of
today and future generations.
Agthia held onto its principles
during the year, confident that
our relentless focus on innovation,
exciting product launches, and
investment in our brands and
people would provide the
momentum needed for strong
and sustainable future growth.

Securing market leadership, Seeking cost
efficiencies & Seizing growth opportunities
Agthia delivered AED 2.04 billion of
revenues in 2019, equivalent to 2%
year-on-year growth, despite broadly
challenging and highly competitive markets
at home and across our geographic
footprint. This was driven primarily by
the outperformance of our flour business
and positive momentum across our food
segment, 5-gallon water business and
international operations.
On the local front, our water portfolio,
consisting of the UAE’s most popular Al Ain
Water brand, as well as Al Bayan and Alpin,
retained market leadership with volume
and value shares at 29 and 27 percent,
respectively. While profitability took a hit
on par with a challenging and contracting
market, we counteracted these negative
trends, along with the last tranche removal
of flour subsidy, with increased efficiency
at every level of our organization. In 2019
alone, we registered cost savings of
AED 41 million, taking the total to over
AED 270 million since subsidies started
to be rationalized in 2016.

Committed to product
and packaging innovation
At the beginning of 2019, we refined our
vision to ‘Inspiring healthier and happier
lives through the wholehearted choices
we offer’. We have again showcased our
innovation capabilities this year, with a
variety of new products launched on
the back of the world-class R&D that we
conduct in the UAE to fulfill the diverse
nutritious and wellness needs of our
consumers. We are also in active
discussions with strategic partners in
various international markets to bring
these innovative products to new markets.
(To read more go to page 26.)
As an another milestone under our
continuous sustainability efforts, we
launched in Al Ain a first-of-its-kind
Packaging Innovation Center the UAE.
We made other significant strides in our
ongoing journey as a sustainable business
committed to social responsibility, working
closely with the UAE Ministry of Climate
Change and Environment on a number of
relevant issues and committing to reduce
landfill waste. (To read more go to page 30.)

“2019 was a year in which we
strengthened the fundamentals of our
business while driving improved efficiency
to counteracting subsidy removals and
challenging market conditions.”
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Surpassing market levels
and maintaining leadership
The core of our Consumer business,
Agthia’s water portfolio – Al Ain, Al Bayan
and Alpin – safeguarded market leadership.
Such an achievement was realized in the
face of the UAE bottled water category’s
continual weakening in volume and value.
Despite this business environment, our
commitment to innovation was realized
during the year with the introduction of
the region’s first zero-bromate-branded
drinking water, Al Ain Zero Bromate and
Al Ain Water Bag-in-Box, also a first in
the region. Pressure in the bottled water
category has come in favor of growth in
dispatched volumes of our 5-gallon Home
and Office Delivery (HOD) business, which
saw a jump in revenues as we put more
focus on the higher margin home delivery
segment of the bulk water market.
Our trading items portfolio under the
Community Support Division in the UAE
now represents more than half of our
food segment revenues, as we successfully
introduced 23 new products to expand our
product offering for consumers. Our tomato
paste and frozen vegetables businesses
grew market share at higher profitability
compared to 2018.
Our international business maintained its
positive trajectory in 2019. The installation
of the high speed line (HSL) and expansion
in distribution network across the Kingdom
resulted in 40% increase in market share
in the Saudi market. In Kuwait, where
operations commenced in September
2018, shipped volumes came in higher
than our initial targets due to faster
execution and wider market penetration,
successfully uplifting the performance of
the international portfolio.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement continued

We completed an
organizational restructuring
exercise to a full-fledged
category management model:
From:
Commercial EVP

Sales

Marketing

Food

Water
Juice

To:
Commercial EVP

Water

HOD

Sales Marketing

Food

Water

On the Agri Business side, our flour
category outperformed market
expectations following the full subsidy
removal from the bakery channel in the
beginning of 2019. We have maintained
our dominant market position in B2B while
conquering number one volume market
share in B2C. We have also introduced
Grand Mills Vitamin D Flour through our
indisputable commitment to innovation,
catering to the region’s health requirements.
Similarly, in our animal feed category, we
retained our number 1 ranking, launched
four specialized new products and managed
to increase profitability through a favorable
channel mix.

Juice/Dairy

Food

Sales Marketing Sales Marketing

HOD

Sales Marketing

Juice

Function Silos

Category Focus

Becoming leaner and smarter
2019 was a year in which we strengthened
the fundamentals of our business while
driving improved efficiency to counter
subsidy removals and challenging market
conditions. Through a culture of costprudence that is now well-established,
having delivered significant savings
every year since 2016, we optimized our
distribution model, streamlined our supply
chain and invested astutely in optimization
initiatives across the company. (To read
more go to page 34.)
Our efficiency drive was complemented
by improved data gathering and business
intelligence through the implementation
of SAP in 2019. By replacing the previous
system with a single platform for our entire
UAE business, which will also be rolled out
to our international operations in the future,
we now have the tools to power better
planning and decision-making.

We also completed an organizational
restructuring exercise during the year
to a full-fledged category management
model. With smaller category-specific
units that are closer to our customers
and consumers, we are now better placed
to listen, adapt and support their needs.
This new structure, along with strategic
changes that took place to ensure the
right people, knowledge and capabilities
in key management positions, will be
implemented in 2020 and will result
in accelerated speed to market and
enhanced service.

Agthia is #1 in key
categories in the UAE:

Water
Flour
Animal feed
Tomato paste

Focused on a healthy and sustainable future
As we enter 2020, we will continue
building on the foundation established in
the previous year to protect our leadership
position in our core business and expand
it through new products, services and
markets. We are the leading proactive
company putting food science to work
for the benefit of our consumers. That is
why we seek to leverage these unique
capabilities to reinforce the brand equity
of Agthia and the positive perception of
our company across all our markets.
While remaining focused on commercial
success, we will continue to do what is
right for the environment and our people,
supporting sustainable packaging and
investing in the development of our talent
base. We will drive further expansion
organically while seeking strategic
M&A opportunities to accelerate growth,
diversify our portfolio and achieve
economies of scale in key categories.
I would like to take this opportunity to
offer my sincere thanks to our Chairman
and Board of Directors for their guidance
and support during the year. To our
customers and consumers, across the
GCC and around the world, I pledge that
your trust in Agthia will be rewarded
through innovative products, exceptional
quality and great taste. And to the entire
Agthia team, I recognize your dedication
and service and look forward to working
together to ensure a healthy and sustainable
future for our company and our nation.

Results

Tariq Ahmed Al WahedI,
Chief Executive Officer
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Business Review

2019 was a strong year
of innovation and new
product launches across
our diverse categories
and geographic footprint.
We maintained our market leadership in key categories and overcame
challenging market conditions to deliver overall revenue growth while
sustaining a healthy balance between our divisions and solidifying our
foundation to enable growth moving forward.
Agthia’s Revenue by Category in 2019
Water & Beverage – 44.1%

Consumer Business Division
Through our continuous drive to launch innovative products,
expand geographically and bolster efficiency, our Consumer
Business Division grew to 56% of the company’s net revenues
during the year, responding effectively to an increasingly
competitive markets.

Water & Beverages
In 2019, we maintained our market
leadership position in the UAE and grew
our international footprint rapidly. We
expanded our portfolio of water and
beverage brands to cater to the diverse
needs of our consumer base, launching
exciting new products that are unique to
our markets. This innovative step further
differentiated our portfolio and rewarded
our consumers with more choices focused
on supporting healthy lifestyles.

Alpin was awarded 2
Golden Stars for Superior
Taste by the International
Taste Institute (ITI) in
Brussels, Belgium.

Food – 12.1%
Flour – 20.4%
Animal Feed – 23.4%

Our UAE bottled water business
performed on par with the market in
2019, while maintaining our position as
the number one water brand in the nation.
As the overall market value witnessed an
8% contraction, on the back of heightened
promotional discounts, pressure on prices
and some movement towards 5-gallon
purchases, our innovation strategy
accelerated to better serve our consumers
and strengthen our brand proposition.
Following the success of Al Ain Zero, the
zero-sodium bottled drinking water, which
has gained 5% market share since launch
in 2016, we introduced a range of natural
or science-driven new products in
2019, including:
•

Consumer business

Agri business

Net revenue contribution

Net revenue contribution

56%

44%

Read more on page 17

Read more on page 21
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•

•

Al Ain Zero Bromate – first zero Bromate
water developed for pregnant women
and patients with kidney disorders
Al Ain Water in box – first of its kind in
the GCC with 100% recyclable
packaging and an easy to pour tap
Alpin Alkaline – naturally alkaline pH 8.5
mineral water sourced from the springs

Towards the end of the year, strategic
initiatives supported Agthia’s marketleading position despite competition.

Furthermore, we witnessed an outstanding
24% jump of online sales during the year,
cementing Agthia’s position as the number
one e-commerce player in the UAE for water.
By narrowing our focus on e-commerce
channels and leveraging our established
infrastructure to benefit from the growing
consumer preference of shopping online,
we expect further growth in the
coming years.

Our commitment to launching, innovative
products will continue to further
differentiate our brands from competition,
while we will invest in strengthening our
commercial platform to protect and grow
our core business.
Al Ain Water in box – recyclable packaging

100%
“Our commitment to
launching innovative
products will continue
to further differentiate our
brands from competition,
while we will invest in
strengthening our
commercial platform
to protect and grow
our core business.”
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Business Review continued
Consumer Business Division continued

Our international water business had
a resilient year of accelerating growth
during the year.
In our manufacturing hubs, our Saudi
Arabia operations grew by 32% during
2019, contributing 8% of Group revenues,
as operations expanded from our stronghold
in the Western Region towards other parts
of the country, reaching the Central Region.
To meet increasing demand for small
bottles format, a new high-speed production
line was inaugurated in early 2019 boosting
our small bottle manufacturing capacity
by more than 150%. Our market share
in Jeddah alone recorded highest surge
versus competitors, moving up to top 3
ranking. The launch of Ain Zero into the
market generated positive initial demand,
which we will look to build on in the
year ahead.
Since our joint venture in Kuwait began
producing Al Ain water in September 2018,
our business there has performed better
than anticipated, demonstrating strong
brand equity across the region. In 2019,
we grew our volume market share to
3.5% which brought us amongst top 10.
Our business in Turkey performed well
overall, delivering a like-for-like revenue
increase of 7% during the year. However,
this translated to a 6% drop when factoring
in foreign currency devaluation.

Food

“Capitalizing on a positive
multi-year growth trajectory,
HOD revenues grew by 5%,
despite a very competitive
landscape.”

“HPP technology uses highpressure to produce juices
that remain fresh up to 21
days and retain nutrients
value for longer.”

In 2019, our food business registered
net revenues of AED 248 million, up by
23% compared to 2018. The recorded
remarkable growth was mainly driven
by trading items and the success of our
operations in Egypt.
Our Home and Office Delivery (HOD)
category for bulk water distributed to
homes, offices and shops in the UAE and
Oman recorded robust growth in 2019.
Capitalizing on a positive multi-year growth
trajectory, HOD revenues grew by 5%,
despite a very competitive landscape.

Rebalancing our HOD channels with
recorded growth in home segment

Office – 59%
Home – 31%
Retail – 10%
% contribution in 2019

Alternatively, our Al Ain Fresh Juices are
now firmly present in key food service
and retail channels, with a well-appreciated
brand built around consistent quality and
great taste. HPP technology uses highpressure to produce juices that remain
fresh up to 21 days and retain nutrients
for longer time, with the potential to
reduce food wastage and enhance
consumer health.

23%
Trading items – New items added in 2019

23

Our trading items business consists of
a broad portfolio of products, ranging from
food and beverages to home care items,
sold primarily in Municipality outlets and
select modern retail trade stores. In 2018,
Agthia signed an agreement with the
Department of Urban Planning and
Municipalities to take over the management
of Abu Dhabi’s and Al Ain’s Municipality
outlets, securing greater stability in our
operations for this channel. Capitalizing on
this outstanding business deal, we moved
swiftly to add 23 new items in 2019, to
reinvent each store into a one-stop shop.
Consequently, trading items now constitute
more than 52% of Agthia’s food segment
with rapid growth of 61% year on year.

“Under our Community Support Division, we swiftly added 23 new items in 2019,
to reinvent each Municipality store into a one-stop shop.”

International Businesses – Revenue growth

HOD revenue growth

43.2%

5.4%
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Food net revenue increase

While maintaining its brand strength,
Capri Sun was challenged by the exclusion
of juices containing sugar from many
schools in the UAE market, as well as the
new sugar excise tax. The brand is working
to develop new alternatives in response
to these evolving market realities.

We continue to invest in our supply chain
and distribution platforms specifically
through ‘My Agthia’ application to enhance
the performance and efficiency of our
delivery system and network to reinforce
our solid market position in the UAE.

Likewise, our distribution hubs continued
to grow and diversify during the year. We
widened our product offerings in Bahrain
and Oman, with the introduction of Al Ain
Zero and functional water. We increased the
number of export markets for Alpin water
from Turkey to 11 countries. We also added
a new distributor in Jordan to establish a
foothold in market and we began producing
Al Ain water in Iraq under a franchise
agreement with a local water company
in Baghdad.

18

Our Food segment consists of tomato
paste & frozen vegetables in the UAE and
Egypt, trading items (Community Support
Division), dairy and bakery.
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Business Review continued
Consumer Business Division continued

In Egypt, where our operations are largely
focused on exports, we recorded a
number one ranking in terms of tomato
consumption. We also grew our business
by 4% in 2019 in AED terms despite
7% revaluation of EGP against AED. We
succeeded in overcoming challenges
related to raw materials sourcing of
tomatoes by transforming our approach,
giving us complete control from sourcing to
shelf. This has resulted in positive returns
through increased cost savings and a more
consistent higher-quality product for our
consumers.
In the UAE, our tomato paste business
cemented its number 1 position in the local
market in 2019, while focusing on improved
efficiency. Net revenues registered a
marginal decline from last year due to a
one-off order in 2018. Meanwhile, our
frozen vegetables business delivered strong
operations in 2019, as a result of resilient
performance of our core Al Ain brand,
supply chain optimization and enhanced
procurement efficiency.

Agri Business Division
Our Agri Business Division, which includes flour and animal feed, witnessed a robust year
versus 2018. Through an effective go-to-market approach, innovation and enhanced
efficiency, we combatted a shrinking market endorsed with heightened competition.

“In the UAE, our tomato
paste business cemented
its number 1 position in
the local market in 2019.”

Flour

Tomato Consumption in Egypt

No.1
No.1

Animal Feed

No.1
As the incumbent market leader in
the UAE flour market, we successfully
navigated challenging conditions in 2019.
We maintained our B2B market share, grew
our B2C share to number 1 and increased
our export sales and wheat trading to
create top-line growth of 12% .

Kids Yogurt Ranking

Flour – B2C market ranking

During 2019, our dairy business under
Yoplait maintained its number 1 ranking
in the kids yogurt and number 2 in fruit
yogurt categories while reducing losses
despite a lower overall sales environment.
In early 2019, we launched the first
locally-produced, lactose-free fruit yogurt
in the region, which is low in calories and
high in fiber specially produced to provide
a delicious alternative to traditional yogurts
for our lactose-intolerant consumers.

Throughout 2019, we take pride in
having largely countered the surge
in global raw material prices and the
evolving competitive landscape in the
UAE that saw elevated volumes of cheap
imported flour hitting the market. With
regards to subsidies, the remaining 50%
on the bakery channel was removed as
of January 2019. We intensified our efforts
to mitigate these challenges, increasing our
footprint in the Northern Emirates, focusing
on exports and expanding our portfolio to
30 products with the addition of Bhatti
flour and Vitamin D flour.

Flour – revenue growth

12%
Animal Feed – B2B market ranking

No.1

Our animal feed business recorded
healthy growth in profitability through
cost efficiencies and favorable channel mix.
Retaining our market-leading position, our
core animal feed sales to large commercial
farms displayed fortitude during the year,
primarily driven by poultry. Meanwhile,
demand from our municipality channel,
which targets smaller, individually owned
and operated farms softened. Additionally,
our non-core opportunistic sales of grains
were down versus last year, resulting in
overall lower volumes and revenues for
the category.
Reaffirming our commitment to innovation
across the board, we launched four new
camel feed products during the year,
designed specifically to meet the nutritional
and health needs of camels in the UAE and
the region.

Meanwhile, in bakery, we succeeded in
lowering incurred losses despite sloweddown progress in sales in parallel with
the overall industry.

“In early 2019, we launched the first
locally-produced, lactose-free fruit
yogurt in the region, which is low in
calories and high in fiber.”

Exports
Exported products mainly include Al Ain
and Alpin from our water category, tomato
paste and frozen vegetables from our food
category, and retail flour. These products
are sourced from our manufacturing hubs
in the UAE, Turkey and Egypt.
In 2019, we expanded our export business
(see our geographic footprint on page 4) to
encompass over 30 countries, despite an
evolving regulatory landscape of changing
compliance criteria for exports and ongoing
currency fluctuations.
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Supporting the GCC region through
innovation and efficient growth
Agthia is primed and positioned to build
on the solid foundations established
throughout the years and capitalize on the
opportunities that lie ahead. Energized by
the power of our brands, loyalty of our
customers and resounding determination
of our people, we will effectively execute
our strategy to defend our leadership in
core categories, while aiming to grow
beyond our core and establish our
business in attractive new markets.

We remain vigilant in our efficiency drive,
seeking further improvements across
our organization while simultaneously
pushing down operational costs, without
compromising quality or performance.
We also continue to innovate for our
consumers, bringing them new, valueadded products for a healthy lifestyle,
while never losing focus on the vital role
we play in ensuring sustainable food
security of our nation and its people.
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Business Model and Strategy

Business Inputs:

Manufacturing

6 countries

11 factories & 18 warehouses

Our businesses:

Strategic Focus:

How we will win:

Consumer

Consolidate existing
businesses.

• Cost efficiencies

Water & Beverages

Maintain market
leadership in key
categories

Bottled Water
5-Gallon Water
Juice

Food
People

4,035

Employees

Expand in both GCC
and non-GCC markets.

Tomato Paste
Frozen Vegetables
Dairy
Bakery
Dates
Trading Items

Develop an integrated
F&B portfolio

Established

2004

• Value-accretive M&A
activities having synergies
with strategic pillars
• Invest in new product
categories in the UAE
and wider GCC
• New product Innovations
• Widen our customer
base and increase
market share
• Talent retention
and attraction

>15 years experience

• Continuing to be a
responsible business
across the communities
in which we operate

Listed

2005

on Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange

Agriculture
Exporting

>30

countries across the world

Animal Feed
Agrivita
Agrivita Marabe

Flour
Grand Mills
Brands

24

across different categories

Supported by
our values:
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Collaborative:

Determined:

Agile:

Responsible:

Open-minded and encouraging,
we take every opportunity to share our
ideas, experiences, and opinions.

Motivated by those around us, we
are driven to succeed and committed to
creating value through everything we do.

Curious and restless and always
informed, we’re happy to learn and
welcome new thinking from anyone.

We all act like owners. Upfront and
straightforward, we are individually
accountable for our own decisions,
actions and results.
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Key Performance Indicators

Financial and
Operational Highlights
Net Revenue

EBITDA

Net Profit1

Assets

(AED billion)

(AED million)

(AED million)

(AED billion)

2.04

263

137

3.12

2019

2.04

2019

2019

263

Cash and Bank Balances

137

(AED million)
2018

2.00

2017

2.05

2016

2.01

2015

1.87

2018

320

2018

210

2017

315

2017

206

2016

356
318

2015

2016

637.2

254

2015

Borrowings

231

(AED million)

521.6
Equity
(AED billion)

Cash from Operations

Capital Expenditure & Investments

(AED million)

(AED million)

106

2019

2019

2018

2018

146.3

2017
2016
2015

430.5
240.4
331.9

2017

Group Headcount

R&D Expenditure

284.2
284.2

2.0
(AED million)

4,035

106

2019

100
207

119

2016

174

2015

170
CAPEX
Investments in Subsidiaries/JVs

4,035

15%

3,941

15%

2017

3,979

13%

2015

CSR Spending
(AED million)

2018

2016

162

6.9
3,722

3,323

12%

1.1

9%

% Emiratization2

1. Attributable to shareholders
2. Grade 5+
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Strategy in Action

Product
innovation for
diversified and
sustainable
growth
Agthia’s commitment to innovation and scientific approach
to planning, developing and launching new products into
the market is a key differentiator for our business.

“Each year, we bring
exciting and healthy
new products to
diversify our portfolio
and satisfy consumer
needs.”
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Strategy in Action

Product innovation for diversified
and sustainable growth continued

Each year, we bring exciting and
healthy new products to diversify
our portfolio and satisfy
consumer needs.
In 2019, we launched various
exciting new products – ranging
from water and dairy to flour,
food and feed – reinforcing our
reputation as the most innovative
food and beverage company
in the region.

Lactose-free Fruit Yogurt

Al Ain Zero Bromate

Animal feed

Flour

•

•
•
•
•

Al Nukhba Beauty Camel Feed
• Naturally enhances animals’ physical appearance

Vitamin D Fortified Flour
• Catered to customers with Vitamin D
deficiency in the region

•

The first locally produced
lactose-free Fruit yogurt
in the region
Delicious fruit yogurt that is
created for lactose-intolerant
individuals who want to
consume yogurt

•

The first Zero Bromate water
Unique filtration technology
Suitable for pregnant women
Designed for people with
kidney problems
Sold in pharmacies and hospitals

Al Nawamis Racing Feeds – 3 variations:
• Calf Builder feed for growth and strength
• Camel Training feed for endurance
• Camel Racing feed for performance

Trading Items
New SKUs to widen
the basket of our offerings

Al Ain Water in a Box

ALPIN Alkaline

•
•
•
•
•

•

First of it’s kind in the GCC
Easy pour tap
Easy to carry for outdoor activities
100% recyclable
65% less plastic

•
•

•
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Naturally alkaline water
from springs
pH8.5 mineral water
Differentiated form competition
who add to water to make
it alkaline
Rich in alkalizing compounds
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Strategy in Action

Breaking
new ground
in packaging for
a better tomorrow

“99% of Agthia’s
packaging is
recyclable and 100%
of its secondary
packaging across all
categories is oxobiodegradable.”

Demonstrating Agthia’s commitment to the sustainability of our business and to
becoming an environmental trailblazer for our sector, we launched the UAE’s first
packaging innovation center in 2019.
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Breaking new ground in packaging
for a better tomorrow continued
Our investment in this center will drive scientific innovation and knowledge development, applying sustainable packaging
technologies and smart production processes to create green packaging for our products and reduce the company’s impact
on the environment.

Our process for developing innovative and green packaging for our products

Feasibility 1 Packaging concept development and Selection
Charter
Check results
against
assessment
criteria

Test with
consumer

Select
preferred
concept
Concept design lock
Identify
filling sites
Finalise
development
partners

32
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300

239.4

123
PET bottle PET bottle
100% virgin 15% rPET

Plant
Bottle

Tetrapack

15

Feasibility 2 Packaging detailed design

23

Technical design lock

Optimize
design

47

Pilot
approval

Packaging weight
CO2 emissions

13.1

Pilot
production

Agthia remains aware of its
responsibility towards the
environment primarily of the
underscored consequences
associated with replacement
materials in terms of CO2
emission as shown in the
below chart. Agthia has initiated
strong plans towards promoting
a circular economy and is
working closely with local
authorities and international
partners on this front.

73

Final manufacturing design

500

Assessing the life cycle of water packaging alternatives, studies show that the highest
environmental impact mainly occurs when producing the product itself. Plastic bottles made
of polyethylene terephthalate (PET) appear to have the least overall environmental impact
after accounting for the material, energy and water resources needed for manufacturing.

Modify and
optimize

Design
proposal
(packaging)

Dr. Thani bin Ahmed Al Zeyoudi,
UAE Minister of Climate Change
and Environment, at the official
inauguration of Agthia’s
packaging innovation center.

C02 emissions (grams) per 500ml water packaging

13.1

Create
detailed
design

Selected
concept

79

Simulation
and analysis

Located in Al Ain, UAE, the center will plan, test, design and develop sustainable packaging
to address some of the most pressing environmental challenges we face today, particularly
carbon footprint, pollution and climate change. It will be used to design recyclable packaging
materials with the lowest environmental impact. Designed packaging will also improve shelf
life of products and decrease food waste.

13.1

Select
designs for
testing

Design
submission

Single
use glass

Single use
Alu Can
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Strategy in Action

Reduced operating costs
over a three-year period (2017-19)

12%
Group cost savings

Driving Efficiency
and Cost Savings
Across our
Value Chain

in 2019 (AED million)

41

Agthia’s strategic efficiency program drove significant performance
enhancements and cost savings across our value chain to counter
macroeconomic and demographic challenges, as well as increased
competition, in our markets.

“Our efficiency
program includes a
wide range of highimpact initiatives
across almost every
area of our
operations.”
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Driving Efficiency and Cost Savings
Across our Value Chain continued
Value Chain

LTIFr – Agthia Group
2.74

3.15

3.24

3.16

3.14

2.94

2.91

2.78

2.49
2.56

2.50

2.25

1.56

1.51

1.81
1.76
1.44
1.23

Source

Make

Deliver

Sales & Operations
Planning

Procurement

Manufacturing

Supply Chain

Sourcing

Production

Warehousing

Buying

Asset Maintenance

Logistics

Supplier
Assessment &
Development

Factory Warehousing

Fleet

Demand Planning
Material Planning
Production Planning
Distribution Planning

Distribution

1.24
0.84

1.25

1.25

1.37

Value Chain Excellence
Customer Service
Projects Management

1.81
1.62

1.23

1.06

0.53

LTIFr2019

0.35

0.0

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Agthia’s efficiency program includes a wide
range of high-impact initiatives across
almost every area of operations, including:
Continuous value chain improvement
Through our efficiency program, we have
succeeded in reducing operating costs
alone by 12% over a three-year period
(2017-2019), including 5% in 2019.

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

1.67

1.25

Upgraded preventive maintenance
Implemented Preventive Maintenance
Software at Al Ain Facility to improve
preventive maintenance of machinery,
which will be rolled out for all factories in
2020 through SAP to enhance efficiency
across all factories by 4% via increased
‘up-time’.
More efficient supply chain
Redesigned supply chain network to reduce
double handling and increase focus on
customers, resulting in better service,
controlled delivery time and reduced costs.

July

Aug

LTIFr2018
Sep

Oct

LTIFr2017
Nov

Dec

Closer relationships with suppliers
Implemented more effective procurement
measures to ensure improved material
pricing.
Conducted a lean exercise
Carried out right-sizing exercise throughout
every department, which delivered cost
savings of AED 10 million per year, while
continuing to build capabilities in our
workforce through training to improve
knowledge and skills.
Maintained a safe work environment
Invested in safety training which resulted
in reduced accidents and unfavorable
incidents year on year measured by lower
Lost Time Injury Frequency rate (LTIFr)
which gauges the number of lost time
injuries occurring in a workplace per one
million hours worked.

Across the Group
and in 2019 alone,
we registered cost
savings of AED 41
million, taking the
total to c. 270 million
since subsidies
started to be
rationalized in 2016.

Cumulative Group cost savings (AED mn)
269

Plan

1.25

1.78

2016
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2017

2018

2019 Cumulative
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Sustainability Impact

Agthia is proud of the
collaborated efforts and
accelerated progress
towards sustainability
At Agthia, sustainability means integrating each of the environmental, social
and economic pillars into our strategic thinking. With this in mind, we designed
a comprehensive sustainability framework aiming to create and maximize the
shared value that we deliver to all stakeholders – including our consumers,
shareholders, employees and communities. To reinforce our commitment to
a sustainable future, we prepared our first stand-alone Sustainability Report
for 2019, which is published on our corporate website.
In this chapter, we summarize our materiality approach and the key pillars identified under our
sustainability framework while providing examples of 2019 activities to reflect on each pillar.
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Sustainability Impact continued

Materiality

Rank

Material factor
01
02

Consumer health and product quality
Water stewardship

Highly Material
03

Employee health, safety and wellness

04

Profitable and efficient business

05

Corporate governance and business ethics

06

Sustainable packaging

07

Innovation and technology

08

Resources efficiency

09

Climate change mitigation

10

Community development and engagement

11

Human capital attraction, retention and development

Influence on Stakeholder Assessments and Decisions

Aligned with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) process and fostered by an external consultant, a detailed
materiality assessment was extended to internal and external stakeholders. The results of the evaluation
allowed us to identify and rank 15 material factors weighing on our business performance. In the graph adjacent,
we portray the materiality matrix and in our 2019 Sustainability Report, we go into details of the process.

01

Materiality Matrix
02

Important
Material

05

Highly Material

13
14

07

09

11

03
04

06

08
10

12

15

Significance of Impacts

Material

12

Responsible marketing

13

Sustainable sourcing

Agthia’s sustainability framework
We have established our sustainability framework embracing the 15 material topics identified and grouping them into four key pillars.
These pillars articulate around our commitment to a sustainable future and dedicated focus on providing nutritious, valued and
responsibly produced food and beverage.

Fostering Healthy
Communities

Enhancing Product
Sustainability

•

•
•

Resources
Management for a
Preserved Environment

Business Continuity
through Responsible
and Strategic Growth

•

•

Important
•

14
15
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Waste management
Biodiversity

•

Consumer health
and product quality (1)
Employee health,
safety and wellness (3)
Community
development and
engagement (10)

•
•

Sustainable packaging (6)
Innovation and
technology (7)
Responsible
marketing (12)
Sustainable sourcing (13)

•
•
•
•

Water
Stewardship (2)
Resources
efficiency (8)
Climate change
mitigation (9)
Waste management (14)
Biodiversity (15)

•
•

Profitable and
efficient business (4)
Corporate governance
and business ethics (5)
Human Capital
attraction retention
and development (11)
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Sustainability Impact continued

Examples of 2019 initiatives

Engaging with our stakeholders

We highlight below select achievements to reflect on each of the 4 key pillars under our
sustainability framework. Details per factor are available in our 2019 Sustainability Report
which is published on the corporate website.

Our stakeholders comprise of investors, shareholders, employees, communities, suppliers,
consumers & customers and government entities. We believe that it is important to engage
with them on a continuous basis to identify essential matters for Agthia’s business performance
and contribution in each of the Environmental, Social and Governance aspects.

Fostering Healthy
Communities

Enhancing Product
Sustainability

Food safety awareness
We delivered more than 1,600 hours of specialized trainings
for food handlers across the group to increase food safety
awareness resulting in reduced complaints ratio over the last
three years to less than 2 complaints per 2 million cases sold
in the UAE.

A sustainable value chain
We consider Sustainability as paramount across our value
chain; thus we increased the number of suppliers that were
subject to assessments for impact on society by 27%
versus 2018.

Reducing company’s Lost Time Frequency
We conducted more than 13,200 man-hours of training
and 3,000 man-hours of toolbox talks1 which contributed
significantly in reducing company’s Lost Time Frequency
Rate by 30% in the last 2 years.

Resources
Management for a
Preserved Environment

Business Continuity
through Responsible
and Strategic Growth

Reduced diesel consumption
Diesel consumption in Grand Mills site for 2019 was
70 times less than last year. By substituting Diesel boilers
with Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) ones as a source of
fuel, we saved more than 2,400 tons of greenhouse gases
(GHG) per year.

Focusing on efficiencies
We continued focusing on efficiencies across the organization
where we registered cost savings of AED 41 million in 2019,
taking the total to over AED 270 million as subsidies became
rationalized in 2016.

Reduced waste to landfill
Waste to landfill across the Group has been reduced
by more than 60% over the last 5 years.

1. Toolbox Talk is an informal group discussion that focuses on
a particular safety issue. These talks can be conducted on regular
basis to promote department safety culture as well as to facilitate
health and safety discussions on job sites.
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Investors and
Shareholders

Launching innovations
We launched several innovations in 2019 which support
the UAE community by providing value added products fully
aligned with our corporate strategy to foster people’s health
with a minimum environmental footprint.

Riaya Farm Program
We launched the ‘Riaya Farm Program’, designed specifically
to assist local farms in developing their livestock and
increasing their productivity to achieve greater returns
on investment.

Reduced GHG emissions
Total GHG emissions related to Agthia’s fleet was reduced
by approximately 30% compared to 2018 via installing GPS
systems on 638 vehicles.

To further reinforce our business success,
we sought the advice of independent
experts in 2019 in mapping out our
materiality assessment and developing
our comprehensive Sustainability report.

Raised training hours
When it comes to our Human Capital, we raised training
hours by more than 50% per employee through our training
plan deployment.
Launching TATWEER
Similarly, to cater for the local workforce, our premier
Leadership Development Program – TATWEER2 has been
launched in multiple countries like UAE, KSA, Kuwait, Egypt,
Turkey and Oman encompassing 565 participants.

Government entities
and regulators

Employees

Customers and
Consumers

Local
Communities

Suppliers and
Contractors

2. TATWEER a premier Leadership Development Program including
various modules from Design to Delivery under one umbrella rendering
it the company’s flagship.
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Corporate
Governance
In this section
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Corporate Governance Report for 2019

Agthia Group believes that
good corporate governance is
the foundation for strong and
efficient corporate performance
The importance of this belief is further reflected in
Agthia’s commitment to ensure that our business
operations are undertaken with the highest standards
of integrity, ethics and transparency.
Our Corporate Governance principles aim to continuously improve
Agthia’s ethical and transparent culture, while achieving sustainable
growth and protecting the interests and creating value for our
shareholders and stakeholders. Our Board of Directors (the Board)
and management recognize the importance of corporate governance
practices that help foster an environment of effective oversight and
strong accountability.
Agthia Group (the Group) complies with the requirements of the
‘Chairman of Authority’s Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 7 of
2016 concerning the Standards of Institutional Discipline and
Governance of Public Shareholding Companies’ (Resolution 7).

The Group’s Corporate Governance Manual is approved by the
Board to reflect the requirements of Resolution 7, determines
the structures and processes by which the Group is controlled
through its Board and the guiding governance principles followed
by the Group. The manual clarifies the roles and responsibilities
of all stakeholders involved in governance processes including
the General Assembly of Shareholders, the Board of Directors
including the Chairman of the Board and Board Committees,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Management, relevant
Management Committees, Internal Audit, External Audit,
Company Secretary and other stakeholders.

This report gives an overview of the Group’s corporate governance
systems and procedures as of December 31, 2019 and has been
filed with Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA), and posted
on the Abu Dhabi Exchange (ADX) website and the Group’s website.
The Board is fully committed to consistently protecting the
interests of all shareholders through the application of high
standards of corporate governance.
Implementation of Corporate Governance Principles
Effectively applied corporate governance guidelines are the
foundation of business integrity and supports management’s
commitment to deliver value to shareholders through sustainable
business results. The Group maintains high levels of transparency
and accountability which includes adopting and monitoring
appropriate corporate strategies, objectives, and procedures
that comply with its legal and ethical responsibilities.

Group Governance Structure
Shareholders

Company
Secretary

Board of Directors (BoD)

Audit
Committee

Internal
Control
Department

External
Audit

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee
Conduct
& Values
Committee

CEO

Executive Committee

Risk
Management
Department
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Insider Trading
Management
Committee

Commodity Risk
Management
Committee

Business Continuity
Management
Committee

The Board has established and approved several Group policies
and guidelines for achieving robust corporate governance
standards. Following are the pertinent policies in this regard:
• Code of Business Conduct to guide the conduct of Directors
and Employees and prevent any influence on the employees’
independence and objectivity addressing matters such as
conflict of interest and integrity, gifts and confidentiality.
• An appropriate delegation of authority to ensure efficient
and effective decision making which balances empowerment
against controls.
• Investors Relations Policy to inform Shareholders and
Stakeholders of how the Group intends to keep them aware

•

•
•

•

•

•

of material developments as well as to provide a framework
of processes upon which Agthia can successfully implement
its Investors Relations Program.
Trading in Group Shares Policy to ensure that Directors and
Employees do not make improper use of price sensitive
information, gained through their positions in the Group.
Dividend Distribution Policy to define the Group’s position on
appropriation of profit and declaration/ distribution of dividend.
Risk Management Policy to promote adequate and consistent
risk management practices as well as a structured process for
identifying, assessing, prioritizing, managing and reporting
material risks across the Group.
Business Continuity Management Policy to implement a
Business Continuity Management System, compliant with
international and local standards, to improve the overall
business resilience of the Group.
Information Security Policy to underscore Agthia’s commitment
and support towards the management of information security
at Agthia.
Whistleblowing Policy to provide Employees a mechanism
to confidentially report any violations of the Code of Business
Conduct, internal policies and procedures, or applicable laws
and regulations.

Dealing in Company Securities
None of the Board Members have traded in the Company’s shares during 2019.
Owned
shares as
on 31/12/2019

Total
Sale

Total
Purchase

Board Member Name

Position

HE Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi

Board Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri

Board Vice-Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Ali Murshed Al Marar

Board Member

4045

Nil

Nil

HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Additionally, none of the Board Members’ direct family members have traded in the Company’s shares during 2019.
The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors’ role is to represent the shareholders and
be accountable to them for creating and delivering sustainable
value through the effective governance of the business. It is the
Board’s responsibility to ensure that effective management is in
place to implement the Group’s strategy.

in business and believes that diversity contributes to the quality
and effectiveness of governance. For the last election of the
Board, the Group invited nominations from both male and female
candidates; however, no nominations of female representatives
were received. Hence, we do not have any female representation
in our current Board.

The Board is the primary decision-making body for all matters
that are considered to be material to the Group. The Board has
a rolling agenda to ensure that the key areas remain in focus
throughout the year.

The Board ensures, on an ongoing basis, that Directors possess
the required skills, knowledge and experience necessary to fulfill
their obligations. Composition of the current Board of Directors
is on the following spread.

Board Structure and Composition
The present Board of Directors was elected at the Annual General
Meeting held on April 26, 2017 for a term of three years. The Board
currently has seven members, comprising an Independent NonExecutive Chairman and six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Group supports the inclusion and participation of women
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Board of Directors

HE Eng Dhafer
Ayed Al Ahbabi

HE Rashed Hamad
Al Dhaheri

HE Mohamed
Saif Al Suwaidi

HE Khamis Mohamed
Buharoon Al Shamsi

HE Salem Sultan
Al Dhaheri

HE Ali Murshed
Al Marar

HE Musallam
Obaid Al Ameri

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Non-Executive, Independent

Term of Office

Director since: April 2014

Director since: April 2014

Director since: April 2014

Director since: April 2014

Director since: June 2015

Director since: April 2017

Director since: April 2017
Resigned and replaced by
Mr. Rashed Abdul Kareem
Al Blooshi in February 2020

Qualifications

External Appointments

Bachelor of Science in
Chemical and Petroleum
Engineering

Bachelor of Arts
(Economics) (USA)

Advisor, Senaat General
Holding Corporation

Deputy Director, Indexed
Funds Department, Abu Dhabi
Investment Authority

Chairman, Al Foah

Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration (USA)

Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Business Administration

Certified Public Accountant

Bachelor of Science
in Accounting

Master of Business
Administration
Bachelor of Applied
Management (USA)

Chairman, Industrialist Union
Society, UAE
Member of the Board of
Trustees, Zayed Bin Sultan
Al Nahyan Charitable and
Humanitarian Foundation
Member of the Board of
Trustees, Institute of Applied
Technology

Director General, Abu Dhabi
Fund for Development

Vice Chairman,
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

Chairman, Al Ain Farms
for Livestock Production

Chairman, Abu Dhabi
National Takaful Co. PSC

Vice Chairman, Arab Bank for
Investment and Foreign Trade

Chairman,
Abu Dhabi Security LLC

Deputy Director – Internal
Audit, Abu Dhabi Investment
Authority

Senior Vice President of
Human Capital and Support
Services, ADNOC Offshore

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
National Energy Company
PJSC (TAQA)

Board Member, Federal
Tax Authority

Board Member, First Abu
Dhabi Bank PJSC

Board Member, Senaat
General Holding Corporation

Board Member, Raysut
Cement Company SAOG

Board Member, Al Etihad
Credit Bureau

Board Member, DP World

Board Member, Emirates Steel

CEO, Al Foah Company LLC
Board Member, Palm Tree
Friends Society

Board Member, Senaat
General Holding Corporation
Board Member, Emirates Steel

Board Member, Emirates
Red Crescent
Board Member, Food Security
Center, Abu Dhabi
Board Member, Al Jazira
Sports and Cultural Club

Committee Membership
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Audit Committee Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee – Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee
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Directors’ Fees and Remuneration
Remuneration of the Group’s Board of Directors is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Group’s Articles of Association.
The Directors’ fees is a fixed fee and is not linked to meeting attendance. Directors’ fees of AED 1.663 million relating to 2018, was
approved in the General Assembly held in 2019, and thereafter paid in 2019.
Total Director’s fees of AED 1.4 million relating to 2019, towards Board of Directors’, Audit, and Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Members’ fees, are to be paid in 2020, subject to shareholder approval. No additional allowances, salaries or fees was received by the
Board members for the year 2019.
Board
Director’s fees
in AED

Number of
Board meetings
attended

Committee
Members’ fees
in AED

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended

Board/Board Committee Member

Board Committee Membership

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
– Chairman

–

150,000

4

–

–

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri
– Vice-Chairman

Audit Committee

150,000

4

50,000

4

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

150,000

4

50,000

2

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

150,000

4

50,000

2

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

Audit Committee

150,000

4

50,000

4

HE Ali Murshed Al Marar

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

150,000

4

50,000

1

HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri

Audit Committee

150,000

4

50,000

4

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh

Audit Committee

0

–

50,000

4

1

1

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh is a consultant on the Audit Committee with relevant financial and accounting expertise and not a Board member.

Board Meetings
During 2019, four Board of Directors meetings were held.
Board Member

28-Feb

30-Apr

31-Oct

12-Dec

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi – Chairman

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is the focal point for communication
with the Board of Directors and senior management, and plays a
key role in the administration of important corporate governance
matters. Our Company Secretary, Mr. Namir El Aridi was appointed
by the Board on, 28 October 2014 and reports to the Board in
relation to secretarial responsibilities. The Company Secretary
has the following key responsibilities:
• To organize director’s meetings in accordance with procedures
to be agreed upon from time to time by the Board Chair and
the Board.
• Prepare notices, agendas of meetings, and supporting reports
and documentation in a timely manner.
• to attend Board meetings and undertake secretarial
responsibilities, including organizing minute-taking
responsibility at each meeting.
• In conjunction with the CEO and other senior management,
carry out instructions of the Board and give practical effect
to the Board’s decisions.
• to report to the Board with respect to all corporate secretarial
responsibilities.
• Arrange/organize shareholders’ meetings
He is also the Group’s Vice President, Legal Affairs and has the
following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
Certificate in Board Secretarial Practice
Board Committees
The Board has established two Board Committees to assist the
Board in discharging its responsibilities. The Committees operate
in line with their respective charters approved by the Board. The
charters set out their roles, responsibilities, scope of authority,
composition, and procedures for reporting to the Board.

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Vice-Chairman
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee, appointed by the Board of Directors,
consisted of three members. Three members were Independent
Non-Executive Directors, and the Committee has additionally
appointed a consultant included a fourth member with relevant
financial and accounting expertise.

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi
HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi
HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri
HE Ali Murshed Al Marar
HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri
Number of Board resolutions passed
Attended

Attended by Proxy

3

1

1

1

Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Board Effectiveness Evaluation
An evaluation to assess the performance of the Board as a whole, its committees, and that of the individual directors is conducted annually,
with the aim of improving the effectiveness of the Board, its members and committees, and the performance of the Group. Our Board
Performance Evaluation set outs requirement for every principal component of the effective Governance including but not limited to
skills, training, accountability, effective communication, quality discussions, and succession planning. Based on the individual evaluation
performed by the Board members, the Board believes that it is functioning effectively to discharge its’ duties towards the shareholders.
Board Induction and Development
The Chairman, with the support of the Company Secretary, is responsible for the induction of new directors and the continuing
development of directors. All directors receive a tailored induction upon joining the Board, covering their duties and responsibilities
as directors. Directors also receive a full briefing on all key areas of the Group’s business, and they may request further training as
they consider necessary.
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Roles and Responsibilities
The Audit Committee maintains free and open communication
between the external auditors, internal auditors, and senior
management. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:
• Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group
and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance, as well as reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments that they contain.
• Reviewing the Group’s internal controls, risk management,
and compliance with the relevant regulations.
• Establishing, monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s Internal Control department, systems and processes.
• Making recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment, reappointment, resignation, discharge and
remuneration of the external auditor and ensuring a timely
response by the Board on the matters contained in the external
auditor’s letter.
• Reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process,
taking into consideration relevant professional and
regulatory requirements.
• Developing and implementing guidelines on the engagement
of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into
account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of
non-audit services by the external audit firm.
• Reporting to the Board on matters that in the Committee’s
opinion require action or improvement, and providing
recommendations on the necessary steps required to achieve
such improvement.
• Reviewing the whistle-blower system whereby employees can
anonymously notify their doubts on potential abnormalities
in the financial report or internal controls or any other matter,
and ensuring proper arrangements for independent and fair
investigations of such matters.
• Reviewing any related party transactions and reviewing
compliance with such rules for the conduct and approval of
such transactions.
• Determining the appointment, compensation, benefits,
performance appraisal, discipline, replacement, reassignment,
or dismissal of the Head of Internal Control and Compliance
as well as the Internal Control Department.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee, HE Rashed Hamad Al
Dhaheri, acknowledges responsibility for discharging the Audit
Committee’s mandate across the Group including review of its
work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness in line with the
approved charter of the Audit Committee.

During 2019, four Audit Committee meetings were held:
Audit Committee Member

25-Feb

30-Apr

01-Aug

27-Oct

AHE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Chairman
HE Salem Sultan Obaid Al Dhaheri
HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri
Mr. Osama Al Sheleh
Attended

Attended by Proxy

Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2019 is AED 0.20 million (2018: AED 0.20 million).
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the review of the Group’s HR framework and compensation
programs. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration, allowances, and terms of service of the
Group’s senior executives to ensure they are fairly rewarded for
their individual contribution to the Group. All the three Committee
members are Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Board.

•

•
•

•
Roles and Responsibilities
The key objective of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
regarding the following:
• Organizing and follow-up of the nomination procedure
related to the Board of Directors’ election and membership.
• Ensuring that Independent Non-Executive Directors remain
independent on a continuous basis and at all times.
• Reviewing the potential for conflicts of interest and judgment,
and that there are appropriate safeguards against such conflicts.
• Formulation and annual review of remuneration, benefits,
incentives of the CEO and senior executives, and that the
remuneration and benefits given to senior management
are reasonable and in line with the Group’s performance.
• Consideration and putting forward for Board approval
proposals on remuneration adjustments, performance
bonus, long-term incentives etc.

•

Emirates Iron & Steel Factory (fully owned subsidiary of Senaat)

Driving the performance-based remuneration culture within
the Group through annual performance review of the Group’s
senior executives and succession planning.
Determination of the Group’s needs for qualified staff at
the level of senior executives and the basis of selection.
Reviewing the remuneration policy and training policy to
encourage development and growth of female employees
in the Group.
Reporting to the Board on matters that in the Committee’s
opinion require action or improvement, and providing
recommendations.
While it is the Committee’s responsibility to exercise
independent judgment, it does request advice from
management and third-party independent sources as
appropriate, to ensure that its decisions are fully informed
given the internal and external environment.

Emirates Iron & Steel Factory (Emirates Steel)

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

653

568

Local sales

Some of the key authorities delegated by the Board are as follows:
• To jointly manage the Company and its subsidiaries’ operations;
• To represent and jointly manage the Company and its
subsidiaries in all transactions and documents before
the Government;
• To sign jointly all contracts and agreements on behalf of the
Company inside and outside of the United Arab Emirates;
• To represent the Company jointly in any manufacturing
and/or distribution deals;
• To represent the Company jointly before the banks for opening
and closing accounts, applying for loans and financial facilities,
and signing LCs, bank guarantees, and other bank documents;
• To incorporate companies and branches the United Arab
Emirates or abroad and sign their articles of association jointly.

Dubai Cable Manufacturing Company (joint venture with Senaat
owning 50%)
Dubai Cable Manufacturing Company (Ducab)

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

197

187

Local sales

Delegation of Authority
The Board is and shall remain responsible for the overall
governance of the Group and for those matters that are reserved
for the Board. The Board through a resolution provided the
Chairman, powers and authorities on behalf of the Board with the
right of delegation. The Chairman under Special Power of Attorney,
delegated key authorities to the Vice Chairman – HE Rashed
Hamad Al Dhaheri, the CEO – Tariq Ahmed Saeed Al Wahedi and
the CFO – Fatih Yeldan to be exercised jointly by any two of them,
which is valid for three years until April 26, 2020.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi, acknowledges responsibility for
discharging the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s
mandate across the Group, review of its work mechanism and
ensuring its effectiveness in line with the approved charter of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

In pursuance of the special powers and authorities delegated
to the Vice Chairman, CEO and CFO, the Vice Chairman, the
CEO and the CFO have delegated some of their decision making
and approval authorities to the management as specified in the
Authority Matrix approved by Board. The Delegation of Authority
framework and policy is established to define the limits of
authority designated to specified positions of responsibility within
the Group. The Authority Matrix ensures efficient and effective
decision making which balances empowerment against controls.

Organization Structure

During the year, two Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held:
CEO
Audit Committee Member

26-Feb

11-Dec

Company Secretary
& VP Legal Affairs

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi – Chairman
HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi
HE Ali Murshed Al Marar
Attended

Attended by Proxy

CFO

Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2019 is AED 0.15 million (2018: AED 0.15 million).
Conduct and Values Committee
The Conduct and Values Committee is appointed as a subcommittee of the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors to
assist the Audit Committee to review arrangements by which staff
of the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties including fraud, and to ensure that a process is in
place for the independent investigation of such matters and for
appropriate follow-up action. The Committee is entrusted by the
Audit Committee with responsibilities for receiving, reviewing,
assessing credibility of allegations, and investigating allegations.
The Committee through its’ established mechanism has reviewed
all such cases or allegations reported in 2019 and reported the
conclusion of the proceedings to the Audit Committee.
The Committee members are:
• Head of Internal Control and Compliance (Chairman)
• Chief – Human Capital & CS Officer; and
• Vice-President – Legal Affairs;
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Related Party Transactions
Note 12 of Financial Statements provides details of related party
transactions.

Director –
Risk &
Governance

General Holding Corporation (Senaat) (holds 51% of Agthia Group
PJSC Shares)
SENAAT

Other expenses
Local sales

2019
AED’000

(15)

EVP –
Consumer
Business

SVP –
Food & Feed

SVP –
International
Business

SVP –
Value Chain

SVP –
Strategy

SVP –
QA, FS, R&D

Chief –
Human Capital
& CS Officer

Investor
Relations
Manager

Executive Committee Members

2018
AED’000

(17)

1,167

–

Al Foah

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Local purchase

21,768

13,659

Al Foah (fully owned subsidiary of Senaat)
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Executive Committee

Current post

Previous posts include

Tariq Ahmed
Al Wahedi

Fatih
Yeldan

Mubarak
Almansoori

Thorbjorn
Thorbjornsen

Rabih
Kamleh (PhD)

Ramy Hamed
Merdan

Declan
Bennett

Mohsen
Selim

Mohamed
Shawky

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Human Capital
and Corporate
Services Officer

Senior Vice
President Strategy

Senior Vice President
Research and
Development,
Quality Assurance

Senior Vice President
Value Chain

Senior Vice President
Food & Feed

Senior Vice President
International Business

Executive Vice
President
Consumer Business

Emirati, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in September 2015.

Turkish, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in November 2008.

Emirati, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in December 2016.

Norwegian, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in January 2016.

Canadian, joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in 2013.

Egyptian, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in November 2017.

Ireland, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in April 2017.

Egyptian, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in August 2018.

Egyptian, Joined
Agthia Group PJSC
in August 2019

Senior Vice
President & Business
Development and
Projects, Senaat, UAE

Financial Director,
P&G, Blades and
Razors Manufacturing
& Packaging
Operations, Poland

Vice President Human
Capital and Services,
Emirates Steel UAE

Co-Founder &
Managing Director,
Boston Analytics, US

CEO Advisor –
Agthia Group PJSC

Business Unit
Head, Keithley
Instruments, US

Managing Director –
KSA & Chief Operating
Officer with Gandour
Group

VP for Food –
Agthia Group PJSC

Chief Human
Resources and Admin
Officer at Emirates
advanced investment
Group, UAE

Group Director Food
Technology Safety and
Quality Assurance
– Agthia Group PJSC

General Manger –
Abudawood Group

Assistant Professor
Food Sciences –
American University
of Beirut (AUB)

Operation Director –
Danone Dairy Egypt

Managing Director
for MENA, Turkey,
Pakistan & Indian
Ocean – Kraft Heinz
Company

Vice President –
Sales (India, Middle
East and Africa),
Procter and Gamble
Company

Senior Vice President
& Petrochemicals at
Abu Dhabi Basic
Industries Corporation,
UAE
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Regional Financial
Director, The Gillette
Company, Turkey
& Mediterranean
Markets

Supply Chain Director
– Unilever Egypt

General Manager
for MEA – Kellogg
Company

Arabian Peninsula
Marketing Strategy &
Planning Manager for
Fabric and Home Care
– Proctor and Gamble

Country Manager –
Global Development
Markets, Procter and
Gamble Company
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Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed by the Board.
The CEO is responsible to delivery sustained growth, and
must direct the Group towards the achievement of its business
objectives, as defined by the Board. The primary role of the
CEO is to define and execute the business vision, mission,
and strategy of the Group and to ensure that all operations
are managed efficiently in terms of allocating resources
appropriately and profitably.

The adjacent activities were adequately discharged in 2019
by the Committee members and no exceptions were noted.

Tariq Ahmed Saeed Al Wahedi
Chief Executive Officer
Date of joining: September 13, 2015

The Chairman of the Insider Trading Management Committee,
Mr. Saeed Akram – Group Vice President Corporate Finance,
acknowledges responsibility for the follow-up and supervision
system on transactions of the insiders in the Company through
discharging the Insider Trading Management Committee’s
mandate across the Group, review of its work mechanism and
ensuring its effectiveness in line with the approved charter.

Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Petroleum Engineering (USA)
Executive Master of Business Administration
(Kellogg School of Management, USA)

Tariq Al Wahedi was appointed as CEO of the Group on July
26, 2017. Prior to his appointment, Tariq had been the Group’s
Acting CEO, Chief Operating Officer and leading the feed and flour
business. Prior to joining Agthia, Tariq had previously held the
positions of Senior Vice President at Senaat and Abu Dhabi
Basic Industries Corporation.

Position

Position

Appointment Date

Remuneration and
Allowances
paid in 2019
AED’000

Chief Executive Officer

July 26, 2017

3,009

710

To be determined

July 4, 2016

1,364

242

To be determined

June 1, 2017

2,070

244

To be determined

Jan 6, 2016

1,323

123

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – QA, FS, R&D

May 10, 2017

1,126

123

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Value Chain

May 6, 2018

1,511

136

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Food & Feed

April 1, 2019

1,044

434

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – International Business

April 1, 2019

831

–

To be determined

Executive Vice-President – Consumer Business

Aug 1, 2019

692

69

To be determined

Chief Human Capital & CS Officer
Senior Vice-President – Strategy

Bonus for 2019
(estimate)1
AED’000

Remuneration
accrued in future
(estimate)2
AED’000

1

Estimated 2019 bonus amount is subject to board’s approval and shareholders’ approval of the audited financial statements.

2

The total vested value of Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTI) accrued in 2019 is AED 3.88 million. The LTI benefits for the senior executives subject to board’s approval and are
linked to long term business performance achievement over a period of three years.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee is composed of senior executives of the
Group responsible for the management of the business, and meets
on a regular basis. The committee members report to the CEO.
The prime role of the Executive Committee is to review business
performance, and organizational and operational matters; set
strategies/initiatives and monitor their successful execution; and
review key business KPIs, progress on key projects etc.

•

•

•
Insider Trading Management Committee
The Insider Trading Management Committee is appointed by the
Board as a Management Committee to oversee and follow-up on
insiders’ trading and their holdings. The Committee is entrusted
by the Board with the following responsibilities:
• Ensuring that the reputation of the Group is not adversely
impacted by perceptions of trading in the Group’s securities
at inappropriate times or in an inappropriate manner
by employees of the company.
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Qualifications:
Fellow Member, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
UK Member, Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), USA
Executive Master of Business Administration, France

The Committee members are:

Below are the details of all the Senior Executives, illustrating their appointment dates, remuneration, and bonus for 2019.

Chief Finance Officer

The Group has established a Risk and Governance Function
separate from line management that enables and facilitate
the risk management process across the Group. Wasif Syed
Muhammad is the Director, Risk and Governance for the Group
and has the following qualifications:

•

•

Evaluating where the employee or third party (such as the
Group’s auditors, bankers, lawyers or other professional
advisors) may be classified as an insider who has direct or
indirect access to “inside information” which may affect
Group’s share price and/ or trading of Group’s shares.
Prepare and maintain a special and comprehensive register of all
insiders, including Directors, Executive Management and persons
who could be considered as insiders on a temporary basis.
Developing, reviewing and continuously improving the Trading
in Group Shares Policy including guidelines and procedures,
and ensuring compliance with the policy and assessing any
indicative non-compliance to the policy.
Annual review of movement in insider share holdings and report
to the Board on compliance with the policy and regulatory
requirements, highlighting any exception cases noted.
Effective communication with ADX and SCA regarding black
out days, temporary suspension of trading and insider trading

Name

Vice President, Corporate
Finance (Chairman)

Saeed Akram

Vice President, Legal Affairs

Namir El Aridi

Director Risk and Governance

Wasif Syed Muhammad

Senior HR Director Overseas,
C&B and Policy

Aby Varghese

Risk Management
Risk management is integral to Agthia’s strategy and to the
achievement of our long-term goals. The Board has established a
risk and control structure designed to manage the achievement of
strategic business objectives. In doing so, we take an embedded
approach that places risk management at the core of the
leadership team agenda, which is where we believe it should be.
The Board provides oversight of the Group’s risk management
strategy and has the overall responsibility for setting the Group’s
risk appetite. Risk appetite guides the Group in determining the
nature and extent of risk it would ordinarily accept, while executing
the business model for creating sustainable shareholder value.
The Group accepts and applies a moderate risk appetite as it
seeks a balanced management of opportunities for sustained
business growth along with focused identification and exploitation
of opportunities generated through its business. It is not the
Group’s strategy to seek accelerated growth by embracing choices
with significant uncertainties.
The Audit Committee oversees compliance with risk management
processes and the adequacy of risk management activities related
to the Group’s operations.

External Auditors
The Board nominates the Group’s external auditors based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee. The appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors is approved by the General
Assembly of Shareholders.
At the General Assembly Meeting held on March 28, 2019, the
shareholders appointed Deloitte, one of the leading international
audit firms, as the external auditors for the year 2019. Deloitte
is a multinational professional services firm headquartered in
the United Kingdom. It is one of the Big Four audit firms.
Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) had been the only external auditor of
the Company for two year, since their appointment at the General
Assembly Meeting held on April 26, 2018. Mr. Obada Alkowatly
is the Deloitte partner issuing the Independent Auditors’ Report
for two years.
Audit and non-audit related fees and costs of the services provided
by the external auditors during 2019 were AED 1,578,722.
Deloitte

AED

Total audit fees for 2019

937,000

Other Non-Audit services
(ADAA Resolution 1 of 2017 reporting,
VAT Returns review, Subsidy review)

641,722

Total

1,578,722

No other services of the external auditors were utilized during 2019.

There have been no qualified opinions reported by our external
auditors on Agthia Group’s interim and annual consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2019. Please refer the
Independent Auditors’ Report in the Financial Statements for
further details.

In addition, the Risk Management Committee, reviews the risk
appetite and overall risk strategy, and makes recommendations to
the Board through the Audit Committee and actions required to
ensure adequate controls/mitigating actions are in place against
key identified risks.
The Group applies a structured and robust Enterprise Risk
Management approach whereby the risk management process
is implemented in defined steps – Identify, Assess, Prioritize,
Mitigate, Monitor and Report.
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Internal Control
The Group’s system of internal control aims to ensure that the
Board and management are able to fulfill the Group’s business
objectives. An effective internal control framework contributes to
safeguarding the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The objective of the Group’s internal control framework is to
ensure that internal controls are established; that policies and
procedures are properly documented, maintained, and adhered
to, and are incorporated by the Group within its normal
management and governance processes.
In accordance with the requirements set out in Abu Dhabi
Accountability Authority (ADAA) Resolution No (1) of 2017.
Management performs an ongoing process of identifying,
evaluating, and managing the risks faced by the Group and
establishes and maintains effective controls for the risks
identified including those over financial reporting.
The Group carries out the review of its internal controls over
financial reporting on an annual basis with respect to all material
financial balances whereby the Management assesses the
adequacy of design and operating effectiveness of such internal
controls over financial reporting. This management assessment
is reviewed by the Group’s independent auditors.
Management has adopted the Internal Control – Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), 2013 to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements.
Management has assessed the adequacy of design and the
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over
financial reporting as of 31 December 2019. Based on the
assessment, Management has concluded that the internal controls
over financial reporting are adequately designed and operating
effectively with no material weaknesses been identified.
The Group’s operating policies and procedures are considered
to be adequate and effective, while recognizing that such a system
is designed to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s
internal control framework. The Board has delegated responsibility
for oversight of the Internal Control Department (ICD) to the Audit
Committee. The Head of Internal Control and Compliance is
appointed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of ICD function.
The objective of the ICD function is to provide independent
assurance and consulting services using a disciplined systematic
approach to improve the effectiveness of risk management,
internal control, compliance and governance process, and the
integrity of the Group’s operations. The function is also responsible
for monitoring the compliance of the Group and its employees
with the law, regulations, and resolutions, as well as internal
policies and procedures. A Charter sets out the purpose,
authority, and responsibility of the function.
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24 reports prepared by ICD are submitted to the Audit Committee
and copied to the senior management of the Group for action.
During the year, no significant operational internal control failures
were identified. However, process level improvements were
identified by ICD and accepted by management for
implementation towards the continuous improvement of internal
controls of the Group. On an ongoing basis, the Audit Committee
monitors the progress that management has made with respect
to remedial actions taken on issues and findings raised by ICD.
On 14 May 2017, Aamarjit Singh was appointed as the Head of
Internal Control and Compliance. He is also the Compliance Officer
for SCA Resolution 7 of 2016 and has the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Master of Business Administration, UK
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK
Violations
During the year 2019, the Group was not subject to any material
fines or penalties imposed by SCA or any statutory authority on
any matter related to capital markets. Additionally, there have been
no cases of material non-compliance with any applicable rules and
regulations. No major incidents occurred in 2019.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Group’s approach to Corporate Social Responsibility centres
on the idea of creating shared value for all of its stakeholders
through economic, environmental and social actions. Accordingly,
the Group’s CSR program has four pillars: Community, Workplace,
Nutrition & Well-being, and Environment & Sustainability. The
Group believes that in the heart of the shared value concept rests
the ability of a company to create private value and to transform
this into public value for society.

Share performance 2019
Month end share price (AED)
Month

Open

High

Low

Close

Jan-19

3.80

3.90

3.80

3.90

Feb-19

3.85

3.85

3.83

3.83

Mar-19

3.71

3.92

3.71

3.92

Apr-19

3.70

3.91

3.70

3.91

May-19

3.41

3.60

3.41

3.60

Jun-19

3.60

3.70

3.59

3.70

Jul-19

3.50

3.60

3.49

3.60

Aug-19

3.50

3.50

3.50

3.50

Sep-19

3.65

3.65

3.60

3.60

Oct-19

3.69

3.69

3.69

3.69

Nov-19

3.51

3.51

3.50

3.50

Dec-19

3.58

3.60

3.40

3.60

Share movement versus ADI and ADCM Index 2019
Base: January 1, 2019
Agthia share price movement

ADCM (Sector index (Consumer sector))

114%

83%

The total amount spent in 2019 on CSR initiatives was AED 1.07
million. The key initiatives or sponsorships related to community
support include Sheikh Khalifa Foundation stores where all UAE
nationals are offered a similar portfolio of products at discounted
prices. The Group also promotes an active lifestyle, by encouraging
health and wellness in the various communities we serve.
The Group is also a stout believer of national talent development.
Of over 50 different nationalities in Agthia, UAE nationals
constitute the third largest and the top one in senior management.
As a testament to its attention to not only quantity but quality too,
the Group launched an Agthia TATWEER leadership development
program that aims to accelerate the career of high-performing
nationals to make them ready to assume bigger responsibilities.
This program has already graduated 29 of Agthia’s best Emirati
performers. Agthia Group’s Emiratization percentage as at
December 31, 2019 is 19.2% (excluding blue collar and contracted
workers) in United Arab Emirates (2017: Emiratization % for
December 20.1%; 2018: Emiratization % for December 20.2%).

ADI (ADX Market index)

86%

26%

4%
-6%

5%

4%

-11%

-8%

-9%
-16%

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

-11%

Apr-19

8%

-12%
-15%

May-19

11%
3%
-15%

2%
-10%

7%

6%

4%

5%

4%

-21%

-19%

-19%

-19%

-21%

-20%

-20%

Jun-19

Jul-19

Aug-19

Sep-19

Oct-19

Nov-19
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Shareholder category (number of shares in thousands)
As of December 31, 2019
Category

Government

Individuals

Institutional

Total

Percentage

UAE

341,144

86,997

107,106

535,247

89.2%

GCC

–

22,815

34

22,849

3.8%

Arabs

–

189

1,115

1,304

0.2%

Foreign

–

37,565

3,035

40,600

6.8%

341,144

147,566

111,290

600,000

100.0%

56.9%

24.6%

18.5%

100.0%

Total
Percentage
Shareholders owning 5% or more
As of December 31, 2019
Shareholders

No. of shares

Percentage

306,000,000

51%

Emirates International Investment Company L.L.C

30,018,746

5%

Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund

30,000,000

5%

General Holding Company

Distribution of shareholders according to the size of ownership
As of December 31, 2019
Share ownership

Less than 50,000

No. of
shareholders

No. of
shares owned

Percentage

69,151

96,079,222

16%

124

17,434,899

3%

From 50,000 to less than 500,000
From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000

33

47,263,406

8%

9

439,222,473

73%

69,317

600,000,000

100%

5,000,000 and more
Total

Investor Relations
The Board is committed to effective communication between the Group and its shareholders. The Group regularly announces its results
to SCA, ADX and shareholders by way of interim management statements, quarterly results, and the annual report and annual financial
statements. Significant matters relating to share trading or business development are disclosed to SCA, ADX and general public by way
of market disclosures and announcements in accordance with the related provisions of applicable laws and regulations, in addition to
press releases and postings on the Group’s website. The annual investor relations program of the Group includes:
• Quarterly conference calls on financial results with investment community;
• Responding to enquiries from shareholders through the Group’s investor relations function;
• Meetings between investors, analysts, and senior management;
• Regular investor roadshows and conferences organized by investment community; and
• A section dedicated to investors on the Group’s website, which comprises of annual reports, quarterly results, corporate governance
report, analyst coverage, investor presentations, share price and dividend information (http://www.agthia.com/en-us/Investor-home)
• Our mobile application ‘Agthia IR’ is available for download on Apple Store or Google Play

Resolutions passed in General Assembly
The Company’s annual General Assembly was held on March
28,2019. The below resolutions were passed at the General
Assembly, following which all the resolutions were implemented.
• Approved Board of Director’s Report on the Company’s
activities and financial position for 2018
• Approved Auditor’s Report on the financial position for 2018
• Approved Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account for 2018
• Approved Board of Director’s proposal for a cash dividend of 15%
• Discharged Directors from liability for 2018
• Discharged Auditors from liability for 2018
• Approved Directors’ remuneration for 2018 of
AED 1.663 million
• Appointed Auditors for 2019 and fixed their remuneration

Implementation of new ERP system
As part of Agthia’s continuous improvement initiatives, to reach
our aggressive targets, be ahead of competition, Agthia has
replaced the existing ERP system with the latest SAP S/4 HANA
system. SAP has been successfully implemented in all Agthia UAE
sites, to reduce all bottle necks in our operations and to better
serve our internal and external customers.

Significant Events in 2019
Agthia Group opens packaging technology centre in UAE Agthia
Group has opened a packaging technology centre for the
development of sustainable packaging technologies in Al Ain, UAE.
The new facility aims to develop more sustainable packaging
technologies to make a positive impact on the food and beverages
industry and reinforce Agthia’s commitment to sustainability and
innovation. The packaging technology centre will enable our
scientists and engineers to develop packaging solutions and
technologies that are safe for our consumers and our environment.

Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Board Chairman
March 5, 2020

New Projects undertaken or under-development in 2019
New Product Developments
At Agthia, we understand the evolving needs of consumers and
always strive to meet these through innovative product offerings.
Al Ain Zero Bromate is a bromate-free drinking water where an
advanced technology has been implemented to reach Zero
Bromate in bottled water. The product is suitable for people
with pre-existing kidney conditions and it is one of the best waters
to consume during pregnancy. Grand Mills Vitamin D Flour is a
multipurpose fortified flour that contains 100% of the Total Daily
Requirement of vitamin D to help address the UAE’s sunshine
vitamin deficiency. The Group has also launched other new
products in the market in 2019, such as Alpin Alkaline, a mineral
water rich in alkalizing compounds, Yoplait Lactose Free, a
lactose-free fruit yogurt, and Al Ain Water Bag-in-Box (BiB),
the first of its kind in the region. We plan to further expand our
portfolio through new product development of innovative ideas.

Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri
Audit Committee Chairman
March 5, 2020

Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman
March 5, 2020

Aamarjit Singh
Head of Internal Control and Compliance
March 5, 2020

Sahar Srour is the Investor Relations Manager for the Group and has the following qualifications:
Qualifications
Chartered Financial Analyst
Bachelor of Business Administration
Shareholders and investors can utilize the following channels to reach Agthia’s investors relations team:
Phone: +971 2 596 0672
Email: ir@agthia.com
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present our
annual report and consolidated financial statements of Agthia
Group PJSC (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the
period ended 31st December 2019.
Throughout the fiscal year of 2019, the Company thrived to
preserve its market-leading position across its core categories,
demonstrating endurance to an intensive competitive landscape.
In the Water segment, we actively defended our number one rank
in the UAE against an overall market earmarked by aggressive
promotions and de-growth in the category’s volume and value.
Similarly, in the Agri-business, retail flour managed to conquer
number one market position despite a rationalized subsidy
environment. Alongside our market outreach achievements,
we continued focusing on enhancing efficiency via restructuring
the organization into a pure category management model for
improved services, implementing SAP for enriched data gathering
and optimizing costs without jeopardizing quality. Furthermore,
we successfully launched various original products, embarking
on our innovative spirit to provide our consumers with a diverse
nutritious and exciting products. Likewise, we inaugurated a
new packaging technology center aiming to develop more
sustainable packaging to make a positive impact on the food
& beverage industry.
In 2019, Group revenues stood at AED 2.04 billion, representing
2 percent y-o-y growth. Net revenue contribution by the consumerbusiness – Water & Beverage and Food – rose to 56 percent
whereas the agri-business – Flour and Animal Feed – generated
the remaining 44 percent of the Group’s top-line.
Agri-business revenues stood at AED 892 million. Flour segment
outperformed in 2019 despite pulled out subsidy environment,
recording 12 percent y-o-y top-line growth on robust escalation in
each of export sales, retail penetration specifically in the Northern
region to become B2C market leader by volume in UAE, and wheat
trading. On the other hand, Animal Feed sales of AED 477 million,
fell short this year on lower grain sales and lessened demand from
small-sized farms. Alternatively, we managed to counter higher
global commodity costs and improve profitability of the agribusiness (excluding the 50 percent withdrawn subsidy from the
Bakery channel) on a favorable channel mix and cost savings.
Water & Beverage revenues reached AED 0.9 billion as the
international markets along with the 5-gallon Home & Office
Delivery (HOD) business in the UAE largely offset the slip in the
bottled water category in home market. Our 5-gallon business in
the UAE increased their revenues by 5.4 percent on higher shipped
volumes. Additionally, our international markets (KSA, Kuwait and
Turkey) revenues recorded 43.2 percent growth as we successfully
expanded our market share in both- the Kingdom and Kuwait.
Digging deeper in the UAE, changing consumer habits came in
favor of the recorded growth in shipped volumes of 5-gallons yet
added pressure on bottled water category which in turn witnessed
a decline in both volume and value. In fact, the overall market size
of bottled water in the UAE declined in 2019 by 7.6 percent versus
last year1. Nevertheless, Agthia’s water portfolio – Al Ain Water,
Al Bayan and Alpin, continues to preserve market leadership at
respective 29 and 27 percent volume and value shares.

Food segment – Tomato Paste & Frozen Vegetables, Dairy,
Bakery and Trading items – registered AED 248 million in
revenues, equivalent to 23 percent y-o-y growth. Positive growth
trajectory was mainly driven by trading items and Egypt. Under
our Community Support Division (CSD), trading items recorded
61 percent y-o-y growth in its top-line on account of new SKUs
and now constitute more than 52 percent of the Food revenues.
In Egypt, revenues were up 4 percent in AED terms despite
7 percent revaluation of EGP against AED. Meanwhile, progress
in both our Dairy and Bakery businesses remained behind last
year in line with lower overall sales environment.
Group net profit2 for the year came in at AED 137 million.
Commitment to cost optimization across the entire organization,
better agri-business profitability and one-time Turkey tax credit
have been critical in reducing the combined impact of the
withdrawal of the remaining bakery channel subsidy, de-growth
in bottled water category in UAE and bad debt provisioning
against longer collection days in international markets.
Earnings per share (EPS) equates to AED 0.228 for each
of the 600 million shares outstanding.
Total group assets reached AED 3.1 billion, increasing marginally
over last year on higher cash balance & IFRS 16 implementation.
Cash accumulated from operating activities of AED 284 million
almost doubled versus last year on favorable working capital
movements. Cash and bank balances amounted to AED 637
million. Group shareholders’ equity came in at AED 1.96 billion
for the period.
Dividend: The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend
15 percent cash dividend for the year 2019.
Code of Corporate Governance: The Board of Directors and
management of the Company are committed to the principles
of good governance. A full report of the Company’s Corporate
Governance activities, endorsed by the Board, has been provided
in the Corporate Governance section of the annual report.
Financial Reporting Framework: The Directors of Agthia Group
PJSC, to the best of their knowledge, believe that:
• The consolidated financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs,
the results of its operations, cash flows, and change in equity,
• The Company has maintained proper books of accounts,
• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable, have been followed in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements,
• The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored,
• There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
Subsequent Events: As of the date of this report, no major event
has occurred which may have significant impact on 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi, Chairman
05 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Agthia Group PJSC

Report on the consolidated financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill
Refer to note 3 and note 7 of the consolidated financial statements.
As of 31 December 2019, the carrying value of goodwill
amounted to AED 275,933 million, or 8.84% of total assets,
as disclosed in Note 7.

We have familiarized ourselves with the process implemented by the
Group to determine the recoverable amount of goodwill regrouped in
Cash-Generating Units (“CGU”). Our work consisted of:

In accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, an entity is
required to test goodwill acquired in a business combination
for impairment at least annually irrespective of whether there
is any indication of impairment.

(i)

An impairment is recognized on the consolidated statement
of financial position when the recoverable amount is less
than the net carrying amount in accordance with IAS 36, as
described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The determination of the recoverable amount is mainly
based on discounted future cash flows.
We considered the impairment of goodwill to be a key audit
matter, given the method for determining the recoverable
amount and the significance of the account in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
recoverable amounts are based on the use of important
assumptions, estimates or assessments made by
management, in particular future cash flow projections, the
estimate of the discount rates and long-term growth rates.

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

Evaluating the design and implementation of controls over the
Group’s testing of goodwill for impairment
assessing the principles and methods used for determining the
recoverable amounts of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated
and assessing that the methods used are in accordance with
requirement of IAS 36;
reconciling the net carrying amount of the goodwill allocated
to the CGU tested with the Group’s accounting records;
engaged our valuation specialist to assess the discount rate
applied by benchmarking against independent data;
substantiating by interviews with management the key
assumptions on which budget estimates underlying the cash flows
used in the valuation models are based. For this purpose, we have
also compared the estimates of cash flow projections of previous
periods with actual corresponding results, to assess the pertinence
and reliability of the process for making forecasts;
substantiating the results of sensitivity analyses carried out
by management by comparing them to those realized by us;
verifying the arithmetical accuracy of the valuations used by
the Group.

We have also assessed of the disclosures provided in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements against the requirements of IFRSs.

Other Information
The Board of Directors’ and Management are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Annual Report 2019, which will be made available to us after
the auditor’s report date. The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
When we will read the Annual Report 2019, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will be required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and consider whether a reportable irregularity exists in terms of the auditing
standards, which must be reported.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable provisions of the articles of association of the Company and the UAE
Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:
•

•
•
•

•

•
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
To the Shareholders of Agthia Group PJSC

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of the
UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;
the Group has maintained proper books of account;
the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Group;
as disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not purchased or invested in any shares during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019;
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of the group discloses social contributions made during the financial year ended
31 December 2019;
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements discloses the material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted; and
based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal
Law No. (2) of 2015 or of its Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at
31 December 2019.

Further, as required by the Resolution of the Chairman of the Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority No. (1) of 2017 pertaining to Auditing
the Financial Statements of Subject Entities, we report that based on the procedures performed and information provided to us, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Group has not complied, in all material respects, with any of the provisions
of the following laws, regulations and circulars as applicable, which would materially affect its activities or the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2019:
•
•

law of establishment; and
relevant provisions of the applicable laws, resolutions and circulars organising the Group’s operations.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

75,538
1,101,670
2,849
275,933
82,908
–

–
1,105,932
4,161
275,933
85,923
7,582

1,538,898

1,479,531

335,900
580,307
27,782
1,115
637,234

338,045
536,769
37,727
194
571,255

Total current assets

1,582,338

1,483,990

Total assets

3,121,236

2,963,521

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets
Property, plant and equipment
Advances for property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Other financial assets

5
6
7
8

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Government compensation receivable
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

9
10
11
12
13

Notes

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Legal reserve
Translation reserve
Other reserve
Retained earnings

18
19

600,000
202,212
(57,475)
–
1,216,448

600,000
188,509
(55,815)
(3,943)
1,193,326

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

1,961,185
28,535

1,922,077
29,643

Total equity

1,989,720

1,951,720

80,458
8,115
57,098

74,228
179,919
–

145,671

254,147

513,437
16,932
446,191
9,285

340,142
–
414,904
2,608

985,845

757,654

Total liabilities

1,131,516

1,011,801

Total equity and liabilities

3,121,236

2,963,521

Non-current liabilities
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

14
15
16

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties

15
16
17
12

Total current liabilities

To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial condition, financial
performance and cash flows of the Group as of, and for, the years presented therein.
Obada Alkowatly
Registration No. 1056
5 March 2020
Abu Dhabi
United Arab Emirates

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 5 March 2020 and signed
on its behalf:

Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman

Tariq Al Wahedi
Chief Executive Officer

Fatih Yeldan
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

21

2,039,263
(1,382,294)

2,001,316
(1,315,227)

22
23
24
25

656,969
(358,018)
(168,491)
(6,931)
9,753

686,089
(328,643)
(149,566)
(7,421)
8,766

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance expense

26
27

133,282
21,017
(22,221)

209,225
23,514
(24,720)

Profit before tax and zakat
Income tax and zakat credit/(expenses)

28

132,078
3,924

208,019
(1,455)

Profit for the year

136,002

206,564

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

137,026
(1,024)

210,496
(3,932)

136,002

206,564

0.228

0.351

Gross profit
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development costs
Other income

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes

Revenue
Cost of sales

2.

29

Profit for the year

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

136,002

206,564

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations
Cash flow hedge – effective portion of changes in fair value
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of employees’ of end of service benefits

(1,683)
–
(6,319)

1,638

Other comprehensive loss

(8,002)

(11,343)

(13,845)
864

Total comprehensive income for the year

128,000

195,221

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

129,108
(1,108)

199,219
(3,998)

128,000

195,221

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Share
capital
AED’000

Balance at 1 January 2018
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year:
Foreign currency translation difference
on foreign operations
Cash flow hedge – effective portion of
changes in fair value
Re-measurement of employee’s end of
service benefits
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year
Dividend for the year 2017 (see note 20)
Transfer to legal reserve
Balance at 31 December 2018

Legal
reserve
AED’000

(42,036)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
–
–

–
–
21,050

(13,779)
–
–

600,000 188,509

(55,815)

–

Other
reserve
AED’000

Retained
earnings
AED’000

(6,445) 1,093,880

(3,932)

206,564

–

864

–

864

–

1,638

–

1,638

–

1,638

2,502
–
–

1,922,077

29,643

1,951,720

–

–

–

(3,943)

–

137,026

–

–

–

–

137,026

(1,660)

(3,998)
–
–

(13,845)

(3,943) 1,193,326

–

–

(66)

199,219
(90,000)
–

–

(1,660)

(13,779)

210,496
(90,000)
(21,050)

–

600,000 202,212

210,496

864

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year:
Foreign currency translation difference
on foreign operations
Re-measurement of employees’ end of
service benefits

Balance at 31 December 2019

1,846,499

–

3,943

–
–
13,703

33,641

Total
AED’000

–

–

–
–
–

1,812,858

Notes

–

(13,779)

–

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year
Dividend for the year 2018 (see note 20)
Transfer to legal reserve

Noncontrolling
interests
AED’000

210,496

–

–

Attributable
to the owners
of the
Company
AED’000

–

Transfer to retained earnings

–

3.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Translation
reserve
AED’000

600,000 167,459

2.

(1,024)

(23)

195,221
(90,000)
–

136,002

(1,683)

–

(6,258)

(6,258)

(61)

(6,319)

(1,660)
–
–

–
–
–

130,768
(90,000)
(13,703)

129,108
(90,000)
–

(1,108)
–
–

128,000
(90,000)
–

(57,475)

–

1,216,448

1,961,185

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

28,535

1,989,720

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Finance income
Finance expense
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables, net
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net change on derivative financial asset
Income tax and zakat (credit)/expenses
Movement in allowance for slow moving inventory, net
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment

6
5
8
26
27
14
10
25
26
9
6

Movement in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in due from related parties
Decrease/(increase) in government compensation receivable
Increase/(decrease) in due to related parties
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Payment of employees’ end of service benefits
Income tax and zakat paid

14

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Investment in fixed deposits
Proceeds from matured deposits
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

6

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid
Proceeds from a long term borrowing
Repayments of a long term borrowing
(Repayments)/proceeds from short term borrowings, net
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Repayment of principal amount of lease liabilities
Interest paid

20

15

Net cash used in financing activities

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

136,002

206,564

106,914
19,722
2,471
(19,691)
20,496
11,686
28,488
(78)
7,582
(3,924)
4,904
1,984

104,569
–
2,529
(19,734)
24,720
11,161
2,816
(1,083)
(3,695)
1,455
644
166

316,556

330,112

(2,759)
(69,479)
(921)
9,945
6,677
36,628

(25,094)
(135,194)
193
(2,099)
(332)
(10,078)

296,647
(11,775)
(687)

157,508
(10,262)
(984)

284,185

146,262

(106,468)
(520,131)
423,602
17,144
1,719

(100,029)
(415,666)
558,622
20,079
1,536

(184,134)

64,542

(90,000)
–
(4,097)
(2,544)
3,169
(24,400)
(21,226)

(90,000)
21,208
(113,625)
11,820
–
–
(25,713)

(139,098)

(196,310)
14,494
(832)
53,853
67,515

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

13

(39,047)
365
67,515

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

13

28,833

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. General information

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) continued

Agthia Group PJSC (“the Company”) was incorporated as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the Ministerial Resolution No. 324
for 2004 in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi. General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) owns 51% of the Company’s shares which is wholly
owned by the Government of Abu Dhabi.

2.1

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are to establish, invest, trade and
operate companies and businesses that are involved in the food and beverage sector.
The registered office of the Company is at Al Reem Island, Sky Towers, 17th Floor, P.O. Box 37725, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.
The Group has not purchased or invested in any shares during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
The Group made social contributions amounting to AED 1,073 thousand during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
AED 760 thousand).
The principal activities, country of incorporation and operation, and ownership interest of the Company in its subsidiaries are set
out below:
Place of
incorporation
and operation

Share of equity (%)
2019

2018

Principal activities

Grand Mills Company PJSC

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of flour and animal feed.

Al Ain Food and Beverages PJSC

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of bottled water, flavored water,
juices, yogurt, tomato paste, frozen vegetables,
frozen baked products and trading products.

Name of the subsidiary

Agthia Group Egypt LLC

Egypt

100

100

Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi ve
Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Turkey

100

100

Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water
LLC

UAE

Shaklan Plastic Manufacturing Co. LLC
Al Manal Purification and Bottling of
Mineral Water LLC
Delta Bottled Water Factory Company
Limited
Al Rammah National for General Trading
and Contracting Company WLL
Gulf National Forage Company LLC

Processing and sale of tomato paste, chilli paste,
fruit concentrate and frozen vegetables.
Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

100

100
Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

UAE

100

100

Oman

100

100

Production of plastic bottles and containers.

KSA

100

100

50

50

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.
Kuwait

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.
UAE

51

51

Import and wholesale of fodder.

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The Group adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. The standard replaces the existing guidance on leases, including IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4
“Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease”, SIC 15 “Operating Leases – Incentives” and SIC 27 “Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease”.
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and is effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 stipulates that
all leases and the associated contractual rights and obligations should generally be recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
position, unless the term is 12 months or less or the lease is for a low value asset. Thus, the classification required under IAS 17
“Leases” into operating or finance leases is eliminated for Lessees. For each lease, the lessee recognizes a liability for the lease total
obligations. Correspondingly, a right to use the leased asset is capitalized, which is generally equivalent to the present value of the future
lease payments plus directly attributable costs, which is amortized over the useful life.
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The Group has opted for the simplified modified approach as permitted by IFRS 16 upon adoption of the new standard. During the first
time application of IFRS 16 to operating leases, the right to use the leased assets has been measured at the amount of lease liability,
using the interest rate at the time of first application. IFRS 16 transition disclosures also requires the Group to present the reconciliation.
The off-balance sheet lease obligations as of 31 December 2018 are reconciled as follows to the recognized the lease liabilities as of
1 January 2019.
AED’ 000

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application
Less: short term leases recognised on a straight line basis as expense
Less: low value leases recognised on a straight line basis as expense
Less: contracts reassessed as service agreements
Add/(less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options

168,857
164,341
(3,161)
(876)
(1,198)
(126,618)

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

32,488

Shown as:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

10,097
22,391
32,488

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated financial position as at 31 December
2018. There were no onerous lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application.
The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the consolidated statement of financial position on 1 January 2019:

IFRS 16 Leases

74

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
2.1

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

•
•

right of use assets – increase by AED 32,488 thousand.
lease liabilities (current & non-current) – increase by AED 32,488 thousand.

Practical expedients
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:
•
•
•
•
•

reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous;
the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;
not to separate the non-lease components from lease components and instead account for each lease component and any service/
non lease component as single lease component;
the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and
the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 “Leases” and IFRIC 4
“Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease”.
Impact on segment disclosures
Adjusted segment assets and segment liabilities on 31 December 2019 all increased as a result of the change in accounting policy.
Lease liabilities are now included in segment liabilities, whereas finance lease liabilities were previously excluded from segment liabilities.
The following segments were affected by the change in policy:

Agri Business Division (“ABD”)
Consumer Business Division (“CBD”)

Segment assets
AED’ 000

Segment
liabilities
AED’ 000

3,117
72,428

3,176
70,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) continued

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) continued

2.1

2.2

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for:
The Group leases Land and building, cars, and trucks. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods depending on the nature
of the leased asset and may have the extension option. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.
Till 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as operating leases. Payments made under leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
2.2

New and amended IFRS applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, have been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and Modification of financial liabilities

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2019

Amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the SPPI
condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment
irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation
do not automatically fail SPPI.

1 January 2019

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, the
entity applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including re-measuring its
previously held interest (“PHI”) in the joint operation at fair value. The PHI to be re-measured includes any
unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation.
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Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

1 January 2019

The amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

1 January 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically
considers:
• Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
• Assumptions for taxation authorities’ examinations;
• The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and
• The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.
The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on these consolidated financial statements but may affect the
accounting for future transactions or arrangements.
New and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

Definition of Material – Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Definition of a Business – Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2020

1 January 2020

The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create output. IASB also clarify that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. That is, the inputs and processes applied to those inputs must have ‘the ability to
contribute to the creation of outputs’ rather than ‘the ability to create outputs’.
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

1 January 2019

Amendments to IAS 23 clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally
when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when a party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint
operation that is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not re-measure its
PHI in the joint operation.

The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.’

Amendments to IAS 12 clarify that an entity should recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised the
transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective of whether different tax rates
apply to distributed and undistributed profits.
IAS 23 Borrowing costs

1 January 2019

New and revised IFRSs

The Annual Improvements include amendments to four Standards.
IAS 12 Income Taxes

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the
equity method is not applied.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

New and revised IFRSs

2.3

Amendments apply to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.
There are specific transition provisions depending on when the amendments are first applied, relative to the
initial application of IFRS 9.
Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Relating to long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures.

New and amended IFRS applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements

1 January 2020

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards related IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6,
IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update those
pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framework or to indicate where they refer to
a different version of the Conceptual Framework.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IFRS 9-Financial Instruments

1 January 2020

Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
1 January 2019

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

1 January 2022

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides a more uniform
measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to
achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts as at January 1, 2022.

Agthia / Annual Report 2019

77

1.

Financial Statements

2.

3.

4. Financial Statements
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) continued
2.3

3. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

New and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its associate
or joint venture.

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

Effective date
deferred
indefinitely.
Adoption is still
permitted.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments may have
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements at the period of initial application.
3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. Gains or losses on disposals of non-controlling interests are also recorded in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
comply with the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended, and wherever applicable, with the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s executive management.

Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (“AED”), rounded to the nearest thousands, which is the
functional currency of the Group.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s executive managment to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which financial information is available (see note 33).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated.
Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
IFRS 10 governs the basis for consolidation where it establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special
purpose entities or structured entities.
The definition of control under IFRS 10 is that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. To meet the definition of
control in IFRS 10, all the following three criteria must be met, including:
(a) the investor has power over an investee;
(b) the investor has exposure to, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are investees that are controlled by the Group. The Group controls the investee if it meets the control criteria. The Group
reassesses whether it has control if, there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This includes circumstances in which
protective rights held become substantive and lead to the Group having power over an investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in these consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the
Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.
Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
together with the fair value of any contingent consideration payable.
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Foreign currency
(a) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within “finance expense”.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss within “finance expense”.
(b) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group subsidiaries (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the Group’s functional and presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:
(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate prevailing at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position;
(ii) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction; and
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for
their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

3. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Freehold land is not depreciated though it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straightline method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. Cost
of inventories includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity. It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Buildings
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

20-40
2-20
4-8
4-8

years
years
years
years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (see note 3 “impairment of non-financial assets”). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Capital work in progress
The Group capitalises all costs relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress, up to the date
of completion and commissioning of the assets.
These costs are then transferred from capital work in progress to the appropriate asset class upon completion and commissioning, and
are depreciated over their useful economic lives from the date of such completion and commissioning.
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Calculations are performed based on the expected cash flows of the relevant cash generating units and discounting them
at an appropriate discount rate, the determination of which requires the exercise of judgement.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose,
identified according to operating segments.
Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at fair value which reflects market expectations of the probability that future
economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Group.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Cash and bank balances
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks, and deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of not more than three months adjusted for bank overdrafts and escrow account.
In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and bank balances include cash on hand, cash at banks, deposits held at call
with banks, and escrow bank account.
Bank overdrafts are shown within current bank borrowings.
Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period
of loan.
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Bonus and long-term incentive plans
The Group recognises the liability for bonuses and long-term incentives in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on an accrued
basis. The benefits for the management are subject to board’s approval and are linked to business performance.

The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Defined contribution plan
Monthly pension contributions are made in respect of UAE national employees, who are covered by the Law No. 2 of 2000. The pension
fund is administered by the Government of Abu Dhabi, Department of Finance, represented by the Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and
Benefits Fund.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use – are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group currently operates an
unfunded scheme for defined benefits in accordance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Labour Law and is based on
periods of cumulative service and levels of employees’ final basic salaries. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at
the valuation date on US AA-rated corporate bonds, which in the absence of a deep market in corporate bonds within the UAE is the
relevant proxy market as determined by the Group.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to past service by employees is recognised in the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately,
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the expense is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group recognises all actuarial gains and
losses arising from defined benefit plans in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income and all expenses related to
defined benefit plans within the consolidated statement of the profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Provisions
Provisions for claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required and settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on call deposits and gains on derivative financial instruments. Interest income is recognised
as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Finance expense comprises interest expenses on borrowings, interest expenses on lease liabilities, and foreign exchange results.
All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividend is approved by the Group’s shareholders.
Government compensation and grants
Compensation pertains to funds that compensate the Group for selling flour and animal feed at subsidised prices within the Emirate
of Abu Dhabi and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, as a deduction from the cost of sales, on a systematic
basis in the same period in which the sales transaction is affected.
Zakat and foreign income tax
The Group’s operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is subject to Zakat. Zakat is provided for in accordance with General Authority
of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) regulations.
Income tax for overseas subsidiaries operating within taxable jurisdiction is provided for in accordance with the relevant income tax
regulations of the countries of incorporation. Adjustments arising from final Zakat and Foreign income tax assessments are recorded
in the period in which such assessments are made.
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
and unused tax losses can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference and unused
tax losses arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the way the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Earnings per share
The Group presents earnings per share data for its shares. Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with customers and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a
customer.
Sale of goods
The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale of goods generally include one performance obligation. The Group accounts for that
revenue at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with several considerations including a right of return and volume rebates.
Rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until the associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that will be deferred.
Right of return
When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period, the consideration received from the
customer is variable because the contract allows the customer to return the products, if any. The Group uses the expected value method
to estimate the goods that will be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group
will be entitled. The Group applies the requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. If significant, the Group presents a refund liability and an
asset for the right to recover products from a customer separately in these consolidated statement of financial position.
Volume rebates
The Group provides retrospective volume rebates to selected customers and products as per the terms specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer on subsequent purchases. Retrospective volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration. To estimate the variable consideration to which it will be entitled, the Group applied the method to each customer
as per the agreed upon rebate scheme that best predicts the amount of variable consideration. The Group then applies the requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration. Accordingly, the Group recognised contract liabilities for the expected future rebates.
Considerations paid or payable to customers
The Group pays exclusivity fees, display fees, remodeling fees, opening fees, and listing and other fees to certain customers for the
provision of various services. The Group assesses whether these services are distinct when compared to the goods sold to the
customers. The distinct or non-distinct services are then recognised as selling and distribution expenses or netted against revenue,
respectively.
Leases under IFRS 16 (applicable from 1 January 2019)
The Group as lessee
The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives
are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

•
•
•
•
•

fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;
variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:
•
•

•

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the
lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revise discount rate is used).
a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the period presented.
The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use of asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option,
the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

Financial instruments
All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured
at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the
consolidated profit or loss.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
Classification and measurement – Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment subsequently measured at amortised cost and not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are:
•
•
•

assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and
assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and sell; or
assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The right-of-use of assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for an identified impairment loss as
described in the ‘Property, plant and equipment’ policy.
The Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term
Leases under IAS 17 (applicable before 1 January 2019)
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
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Impairment
Loss allowance for financial investments measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross carrying amount of assets.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue costs or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s receivables operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.
In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:
•
•

•
•
•
•

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;
significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial
asset has been less than its amortised cost;
existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;
an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is within these consolidated financial statements (see note 3 “Financial
Instruments”)

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
•
•
•

The financial instrument has a low risk of default;
The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and
Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management assigns useful lives and residual values to items of property, plant and equipment based on the intended use of the assets
and the expected economic lives of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such as technological advances or prospective
utilisation of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from the initial estimates.

For certain categories of financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio as well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment of non-current assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the
recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained within these consolidated
financial statements (see notes 7 and 8).

Measurement of ECL
The Group employs statistical models for ECL calculations for its trade and other receivables, government compensation receivables,
due from related parties and cash and bank balances. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The parameters used in
calculation are derived from the Group’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data and adjusted to reflect
forward-looking information.

Provision for obsolescence on inventories
Management reviews the movement in ageing and movements of its inventory items to assess loss on account of obsolescence on a
regular basis. In determining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
management makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that future salability of the product and the net
realisable value for such product and expired or close to expiry raw material and finished goods.

The Group assess impairment loss on its trade and other receivables portfolio using an expected loss measurement basis using the
simplified approach.

Determining the lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive whether to exercise
an extension or a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). Potential future cash outflows have not been included in the lease liability
because it is not reasonably certain that the leases will be extended (or not terminated).

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received

Discounting of lease payments
The lease payments are discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) except for few contracts with respect to the
land and buildings, where implicit rate in lease is used. Management has applied judgments and estimates to determine the IBR at the
commencement of lease.

4. Accounting estimates and judgements

Further information about accounting estimates, judgements and significant assumptions made in measuring fair values are disclosed
in within these consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
(see note 2); management has made the following judgements which have a significant effect on the amounts of the Group assets and
liabilities recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

5. Right-of-use assets

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer channels that have similar loss patterns (i.e. customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of guarantees).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the market, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Land and
buildings
AED’000

Motor
vehicles
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost
At 1 January 2019 upon adoption of IFRS 16
Additions during the year

8,190
36,202

24,298
26,570

32,488
62,772

At 31 December 2019

44,392

50,868

95,260

Accumulated amortisation
Charge for the year

7,437

12,285

19,722

At 31 December 2019

7,437

12,285

19,722

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

36,955

38,583

75,538

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in Note 16.
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7. Goodwill

6. Property, plant and equipment
Land and
buildings
AED’000

Plant and
equipment
AED’000

Furniture and
fixtures
AED’000

Motor
vehicles
AED’000

Capital work
in progress
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Written off
Currency retranslation

665,191
4,780
48,960
–
–
(1,918)

1,050,171
18,812
47,631
(6,655)
–
(6,245)

70,251
4,675
2,791
(1,037)
–
(256)

70,669
2,204
2,625
(6,908)
–
(155)

126,769
69,285
(102,007)
–
(166)
(4,147)

1,983,051
99,756
–
(14,600)
(166)
(12,721)

At 31 December 2018
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Reclassifications
Written off
Currency retranslation

717,013
1,788
21,324
–
43,466
–
(55)

1,103,714
19,971
96,111
(5,632)
(32,108)
(995)
(1,164)

76,424
2,696
1,846
(18,270)
(12,056)
–
32

68,435
2,030
1,702
(3,443)
698
–
26

89,734
81,295
(120,983)
–
–
(1,016)
(616)

2,055,320
107,780
–
(27,345)
–
(2,011)
(1,777)

50,672

69,448

48,414

2,131,967

At 31 December 2019

783,536

1,179,897

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals
Currency retranslation

212,648
16,912
–
(214)

548,006
71,875
(6,556)
(2,033)

55,740
5,851
(1,023)
(168)

45,079
9,931
(6,568)
(92)

–
–
–
–

861,473
104,569
(14,147)
(2,507)

At 31 December 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals
Reclassifications
Currency retranslation

229,346
20,324
–
30,097
82

611,292
75,605
(4,004)
(20,026)
(375)

60,400
3,116
(18,270)
(10,703)
17

48,350
7,869
(3,430)
632
(25)

–
–
–
–
–

949,388
106,914
(25,704)
–
(301)

At 31 December 2019

279,849

662,492

34,560

53,396

–

1,030,297

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

503,687

517,405

16,112

16,052

48,414

1,101,670

At 31 December 2018

487,667

492,422

16,024

20,085

89,734

1,105,932

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Decrease)/increase in advances for property, plant and equipment

107,780
(1,312)

99,756
273

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of cash flows

106,468

100,029

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

92,513
9,360
4,771
270

87,707
9,852
6,536
474

106,914

104,569

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”) where the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:

Agri business division
Consumer business division
Consumer business division
Consumer business division
Consumer business division

(UAE operations)
(Turkish operations)
(Al Bayan operations)
(KSA operations)

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
87,597

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
87,597

275,933

275,933

The recoverable amounts of Agri Business Division and Consumer Business Divisions CGUs were based on their values in use
determined by management. The carrying amounts of these units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amounts.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the units. Cash flows were
projected based on past experience and the five-year business plan approved by the management and were based on the following
key assumptions:

2019

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

2018

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

Consumer
Consumer
Consumer business division business division
Consumer
Agri business division
(Turkey
(Al Bayan business division
business division (UAE operations)
operations)
operations) (KSA operations)

0%-1%
9.6%

3%-6%
8.4%

15%-38%
11.5%

0%-6%
8.4%

3%-5%
8.4%

Agri
business division

Consumer
business division
(UAE operations)

Consumer
business division
(Turkey
operations)

Consumer
business division
(Al Bayan
operations)

Consumer
business division
(KSA operations)

1%-2%
9.6%

4%-6%
8.4%

6%-15%
11.5%

6%-13%
8.4%

6%-20%
8.4%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry
and are based on both external and internal sources.
Sensitivity analysis
The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the key assumptions used to determine the
recoverable amount for each of the group of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated. Management anticipates that no reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions above would cause the carrying value of any of the CGU including goodwill to materially exceed its
recoverable amount.

Depreciation expense during the year is charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss as follows:

Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development costs
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10. Trade and other receivables

8. Intangible assets
Trademarks
AED’000

License
AED’000

Spring water
rights
AED’000

Others
AED’000

Total
AED’000

At 1 January 2018
Amortisation
Currency retranslation

57,073
(2,445)
(36)

26,521
–
–

6,202
–
(1,775)

591
(84)
(124)

90,387
(2,529)
(1,935)

At 31 December 2018
Amortisation
Currency retranslation

54,592
(2,442)
(15)

26,521
–
–

4,427
–
(493)

383
(29)
(36)

85,923
(2,471)
(544)

At 31 December 2019

52,135

26,521

3,934

318

82,908

Spring water rights is considered to have an indefinite life as per agreement terms, while license has been acquired with the option to
renew at the end of the period at little or no cost allowing the Group to determine that this license has indefinite useful life. The Group
is not aware of any material legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factor which could limit its useful life.
Accordingly, spring water rights and license are not amortised.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of these units. Cash flows were
projected based on experience to build a five-year business plan for spring water rights and license using the following key assumptions:

2019

Spring water
rights

License

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

15%-38%
11.5%

6%-27%
8.4%

Spring water
rights

License

2%-21%
11.5%

6%-30%
8.4%

2018

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry
and are based on both external and internal sources.

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Raw and packing materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Spare parts and consumable materials
Goods in transit

181,475
3,169
105,279
67,250
2,625

178,095
9,810
73,230
66,377
29,527

Provision for slow moving inventory

359,798
(23,898)

357,039
(18,994)

335,900

338,045

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Released/written off

18,994
8,892
(3,988)

18,350
4,193
(3,549)

Closing balance

23,898

18,994

The movement in the provision for slow moving inventory during the year is as follows:

Agthia / Annual Report 2019

2018
AED’000

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment losses

534,744
(55,865)

483,533
(27,377)

Other receivables
Prepayments and advances

478,879
54,802
46,626

456,156
36,520
44,093

580,307

536,769

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Released/written off

27,377
29,844
(1,356)

24,561
3,177
(361)

Closing balance

55,865

27,377

The movement in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not show significantly different loss pattern for different customer channels, the provision for loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different customer base.
As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
As at 31 December 2019

Gross receivables (in AED’ 000)
ECL %
Provision (in AED’ 000)

Not due

0-90
Days

91-180
Days

181-270
Days

271-360
Days

361 days
and Above

Total

199,575
2.2%
4,321

91,651
4.1%
3,746

77,136
13.5%
10,382

56,159
19.7%
11,054

27,842
20.8%
5,780

82,381
25.0%
20,582

535,744
10.4%
55,865

Not due

0-90
Days

91-180
Days

181-270
Days

271-360
Days

361 days
and Above

Total

222,086
0.8%
1,769

136,244
2.0%
2,720

31,255
8.1%
2,521

20,640
16.4%
3,386

22,963
20.3%
4,670

50,345
24.5%
12,311

483,533
5.7%
27,377

As at 31 December 2018

9. Inventories

90

2019
AED’000

Gross receivables (in AED’ 000)
ECL %
Provision (in AED’ 000)

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL”) for trade receivables using the simplified approach. To determine the expected
credit losses all debtors were classified into five categories and ECL rate for each category was determined using a provision matrix:
• Category I – Government
• Category II – Municipalities
• Category III – Reprocessing/food service
• Category IV – Retail/distributors
• Category V – Others
These were adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of the conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money, where appropriate.
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c) Amounts due to related parties

11. Government compensation receivable
Government compensation receivables pertains to subsidy funds that compensate the Group for selling flour and animal feed in the
Emirate of Abu Dhabi.
The movement in the government compensation receivable during the year is as follows:
2019
AED’000

Opening balance
Compensation for the year
Amounts received
Closing balance

37,727
121,383
(131,328)
27,782

2018
AED’000

35,628
147,827
(145,728)
37,727

Al Foah Company LLC – affiliated company
Opening balance
Purchases
Payments
Closing balance
General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) – parent company
Opening balance
Payments/expenses recharged
Closing balance

12. Balances and transactions with related parties

Total amount due to related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions.

13. Cash and bank balances

Related parties comprise major shareholders, key management personnel, Board of Directors and their related companies.
Cash on hand
Current and savings accounts

In the normal course of business, the Group had various transactions with its related parties.

Cash and bank balances

a) Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation for the year is as follows:

Short term benefits
Long term benefits

Closing balance
Dubai Cable Company (Private) Limited – affiliated company
Opening balance
Sales
Collections
Closing balance
Total amount due from related parties
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2,519
13,659
(13,974)

9,285

2,204

–
–

421
(17)

–

404

9,285

2,608

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

1,903
73,741

2,753
103,441

75,644

106,194

(25,036)
(21,775)

(26,811)
(11,868)

28,833

67,515

19,234
4,327

19,185
4,304

Cash and bank balances
Fixed deposits

75,644
561,590

106,194
465,061

23,561

23,489

Cash and bank balances in the consolidated statement of financial position

637,234

571,255

2019
AED’000

Emirates Iron & Steel Company LLC – affiliated company
Opening balance
Sales
Collections

2,204
21,768
(14,687)

2018
AED’000

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows

Fixed deposits are for a period not more than one year (2018: not more than one year). Interest is earned on these deposits at prevailing
market rates, the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their fair value.

b) Amounts due from related parties

Closing balance

2018
AED’000

2019
AED’000

The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances and related expenses recharged as at/for the year are as follows:

General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) – parent company
Opening balance (credit)
Sales
Expenses recharged

Escrow account (for dividend distribution 2009 to 2014)
Bank overdrafts (see note 15)

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

(404)
1,167
(15)

–
–
–

748

–

84
653
(517)

334
568
(818)

220

84

110
197
(160)

53
187
(130)

147

110

1,115

194

Escrow account represents cash at bank set aside for payment of dividend related to 2009 to 2014. Equivalent amount has been
recorded as liability in trade and other payables. This restricted cash balance has not been included in the cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows.
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15. Bank borrowings continued

14. Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Amounts recognised in balance sheet
Opening balance
Service cost (including interest costs)
Benefit payments
Loss/(gain) on remeasurement

74,228
11,686
(11,775)
6,319

74,967
11,161
(10,262)
(1,638)

Closing balance

80,458

74,228

8,866
2,820

8,777
2,384

11,686

11,161

Total

561
5,856
(98)

469
(2,817)
710

*

6,319

(1,638)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss account
Current service cost
Interest expense
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions
Effect of changes in financial assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments
Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Rate of salary increase

Sensitivity analysis
Discount rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points
Salary increase rate
- 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

3.0%
3%
for all
entities
except for
the
subsidiary
in Kuwait
5% p.a.

4.10%
4%
for the first
year and
thereafter
3% p.a.

4,165
(3,877)

3,841
(3,563)

3,892
(4,148)

3,576
(3,826)

The Group expects total benefit payments of AED 10,729 thousand in 2020 (2018: AED 9,951 thousand in 2019).
15. Bank borrowings
Contractual terms of the Group’s interest bearing loans and borrowings is as follows:

Current liabilities:
Credit facilities
Short term loan
Bank overdrafts
Term loans
Non-current liabilities
Term loans
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Terms and repayment schedule
Amounts in AED’000
2019

Short term loans/
bank overdrafts
Credit facilities**
Term loan 1***
Term loan 2****
Term loan 3*****

**

***
****

*****

Currency

Interest
Rate

USD/AED/EGP/KWD/
TRY/SAR
USD/ AED
USD
KWD
SAR

LIBOR/EIBOR/KIBOR/SAIBOR/
mid corridor rate + margin *
LIBOR/EIBOR + margin *
LIBOR+ margin*
KIBOR + margin*
SAIBOR + margin *

2018
AED’000

281,755
36,489
21,775
173,418

267,441
55,101
11,868
5,732

513,437

340,142

8,115

179,919

Face value /
limit

Carrying
amount

Face value /
limit

Carrying
amount

2020
2020
2020
2022
2025

260,325
730,525
165,303
17,137
48,950

58,264
281,755
165,303
16,230
–

171,927
767,340
165,303
21,209
–

66,969
267,441
165,303
20,348
–

1,222,240 521,552 1,125,779

520,061

Margin on the above loans and facilities varies from 0.40 %-0.95 % (2018: 0.40%-1.15%) for UAE and 0.50 %-3 % (2018: 1.25%-3%) for overseas
credit facilities.
Credit facilities mainly includes facilities with face value AED 350,000 thousand (2018: AED 350,000 thousand) and credit facility (Capex) of face value
AED 15,000 thousand (2018: AED 50,000 thousand) which are secured by a floating charge over the current assets, inventory and receivables of
the Group.
The Group has a long-term loan of AED 165,303 thousand for a tenure of five years. The loan is secured by floating charges over the current assets,
inventory and receivables of the Group.
One of the Group’s subsidiary, Al Rammah National for General Trading and Contracting Company WLL availed a loan of AED 21,209 thousand (equivalent
to KWD 1,750 thousand) for a tenure of four years repayable in 2022. The loan is secured by corporate guarantee of 50% from the Group and the
remaining 50% from a third party owning 50% of Al Rammah National for General Trading and Contracting Company WLL.
One of the Group’s subsidiary, Delta Bottled Water Factory Company Limited agreed a long term facility of AED 48,950 thousand (equivalent to
SAR 50,000 thousand) for a tenure of five years repayable in 2025. The facility is secured by corporate guarantee of 100% from the Group.

Changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, which are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities are as follows:
2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Changes from financing cash flows related to borrowing
Opening balance
Settlements of long term loans, net
(Settlements)/ proceeds from other borrowings excluding overdrafts, net
Interest paid

520,061
(6,501)
(1,915)
(21,226)

592,951
(99,009)
18,276
(25,713)

Total changes from financing cash flow

(29,642)

(106,446)

Other changes/liability related
Interest expense
Changes in overdrafts and accruals

20,496
10,637

24,720
8,836

Total liability related other changes

31,133

33,556

521,552

520,061

Closing balance
2019
AED’000

2018

Year of
maturity

16. Lease liabilities
2019
AED’000

At 1 January 2019 upon adoption of IFRS 16
Lease liabilities for the year
Payments made during the year
Interest cost

32,488
62,773
(24,400)
3,169

Closing balance

74,030

Agthia / Annual Report 2019

95

1.

Financial Statements

2.

3.

4. Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019

16 Lease liabilities continued

21. Cost of sales

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019 shown as follows:
2019
AED’000

Current
Non-current

16,932
57,098
74,030

The Group does not have a significant liquidity risk regarding its lease liabilities and does not have any variable component in
lease payments.

Raw materials
Salaries and benefits
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Utilities
Maintenance
Rent expenses
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Others

Maturity analysis for the Group lease liabilities is as follows:
2019
AED’000

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

16,932
37,858
19,240

Closing balance

74,030

17. Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Other payables

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

137,384
198,196
110,611

134,295
193,981
86,628

446,191

414,904

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

1,005,848
148,358
92,513
46,358
32,787
6,882
2,353
47,195

938,106
146,961
87,707
52,340
30,000
10,953
–
49,160

1,382,294

1,315,227

Cost of raw materials for flour and feed products is stated after the deduction of the Abu Dhabi Government compensation amounting to
AED 121,383 thousand (2018: AED 147,827 thousand). The purpose of the compensation is to partially reduce the impact of increased
and volatile global grain prices on food retail prices for the consumers in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi (see note 11).
22. Selling and distribution expenses

Salaries and benefits
Marketing expenses
Transportation
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Rent expense
Maintenance
Royalty fees
Others

18. Share capital

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

198,329
42,300
46,692
15,113
9,360
7,259
6,698
3,854
28,413

181,056
37,771
50,405
–
9,852
22,303
5,723
4,210
17,323

358,018

328,643

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

80,223
29,844
10,972
10,903
4,771
2,471
2,414
2,256
24,637

91,771
3,177
11,442
13,879
6,536
4,925
2,529
–
15,307

168,491

149,566

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

5,814
270
847

5,846
474
1,101

6,931

7,421

Share capital includes issued and fully paid 600,000 thousand shares of a par value of AED 1 each.

Authorised share capital (ordinary shares of AED 1 each)
Issued and fully paid share capital

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

1,000,000

1,000,000

600,000

600,000

During the Annual General Assembly held on 24 March 2016, the shareholders’ approved resolutions for authorised capital of AED 1
billion. Subsequently on 9 February 2020, the shareholders approved resolutions to increase the authorised capital to AED 1.2 billion,
keeping the issued and paid up capital of AED 600,000 thousand.
19. Legal reserve
In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and the Company’s Articles of Association, as amended, 10% of the profit for
each year attributable to the owners of the Company is transferred to the legal reserve until this reserve equals 50% of the paid up
share capital. The legal reserve is restricted and not available for distribution.
20. Dividend
The Group paid during the year AED 90,000 thousand cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 results (2018: paid cash
dividend of AED 90,000 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2017 results) which represents 15% (2018: 15%) of the issued and
paid up capital of the Company.
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23. General and administrative expenses

Salaries and benefits
Allowance for impairment loss of trade receivables
Maintenance
Legal and professional fees
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Rent expense
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Others

24. Research and development costs

Salaries and benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Others
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30. Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

25. Other income

Income on sale of raw materials/scrap
Management fee
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Others

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

3,015
540
78
6,120

1,807
2,040
1,083
3,836

9,753

8,766

2019
AED’000

Bank guarantees

20,090

53,195

Letters of credit

71,736

39,777

Capital commitments

42,044

38,792

Management fee represents the wheat storage fees charged to an Abu Dhabi Government entity as part of food security program.

Bank guarantees and letters of credits were issued in the normal course of business. These include deferred payment credit,
performance bonds, tender bonds, deferred payment bills, inward bill and margin deposit guarantees.

26. Finance income

31. Non-controlling interests

Interest income
Gain on derivative financial asset
Others

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

19,691
1,194
132

19,734
3,780
–

21,017

23,514

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

20,496
3,169
(1,444)

24,837
–
(117)

22,221

24,720

27.Finance expense

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Foreign exchange gains

Calculation of the Group’s material Non-Controlling Interests (“NCI”) is as follows:

NCI percentage
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets
Net assets attributable to NCI
Revenue
Expenses

2018
AED’000

50%
94,175
10,199
(10,295)
(37,010)

50%
92,289
8,447
(14,774)
(26,676)

57,069

59,286

28,535

29,643

23,240
(25,288)

4,209
(12,073)

(2,048)

(7,864)

Net loss attributable to NCI

(1,024)

(3,932)

(168)

(131)

(84)

(66)

(1,108)

(3,998)

Other comprehensive loss attributable to NCI
The Group’s operation in Egypt, Turkey and Oman are subject to corporate taxation. Provision is made for taxes at rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the consolidated statement of financial position date on taxable profits of overseas subsidiaries in accordance
with the fiscal regulations of the countries in which they operate.

2019
AED’000

Net loss
Other comprehensive loss for the year

28. Income tax and zakat

2018
AED’000

Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI
32. Financial instruments

Further, the Group’s operation in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is subject to Zakat. Zakat is provided in accordance with the
Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on accrual basis. The provision is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Differences, if any, resulting from the final assessments are adjusted in the year
of their finalisation.

Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the
reporting date is as follows:

29. Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Group profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of shares in issue throughout the year.
2019

2018

Profit for the year attributable to the Owners of the Company (AED’000)

137,026

210,496

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year (‘000)

600,000

600,000

0.228

0.351

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

As of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has not issued any instruments that have an impact on earnings per share when
exercised and accordingly diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per share.

Trade receivables, net
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash at banks

Notes

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

10
10
12
11
13

478,879
54,802
1,115
27,782
635,331

456,156
36,520
194
37,727
568,502

1,197,909

1,099,099

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables as calculated using Expected Credit Loss approach based on lifetime expected
credit losses using the Group’s management prior experience and the current economic environment adjusted for forward looking factors.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with overall exposure being spread over a large number of customers.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses.
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32. Financial instruments continued

32. Financial instruments continued

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational and capital expenditures in accordance with
the Group’s working capital requirements, including servicing financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates on interest bearing borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit for the year would have been AED 5,189 thousand (2018: AED 4,601 thousand) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest expense.

Contractual maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:

Capital management
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.
In maintaining an appropriate capital structure and providing returns for shareholders in 2019, the Group provided returns to
shareholders in the form of dividends for the year 2018 results, current details of which are included in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2019:
Amounts in AED’000

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Carrying
value

Contractual cash
flows

Up to
1 year

1-2
years

2-5
years

More than
5 years

446,191
9,285
521,552
74,030

446,191
9,285
528,762
86,440

446,191
9,285
520,382
19,667

–
–
6,749
16,297

–
–
1,631
27,147

–
–
–
23,329

1,051,058

1,070,678

995,525

23,046

28,778

23,329
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants as at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

As at 31 December 2018:
Amounts in AED’000

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings

Fair value hierarchy
The Group measures financial instruments such as other financial assets at fair value at each consolidated statement of financial
position date.

Carrying
Value

Contractual cash
flows

Up to
1 year

1-2
years

2-5
years

More than
5 years

414,904
2,608
520,061

414,904
2,608
545,863

414,904
2,608
364,170

–
–
174,506

–
–
7,187

–
–
–

937,573

963,375

781,682

174,506

7,187

–

Market risk
Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the Group financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in currency that’s not
the Group’s currency. The Group exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily limited to transactions in Turkish Lira (“TRY”), Kuwaiti
Dinar (“KWD”), Egyptian Pounds (“EGP”), Euro (“EUR”), Great Britain Pounds (“GBP”), United State Dollars (“USD”), Omani Riyals
(“OMR”) and Saudi Riyals (“SAR”).
Management anticipates that the Group’s exposure to currency risk is limited as the Group’s currency and Saudi Riyals (“SAR”) are
pegged to USD. The fluctuation in exchange rates against TRY, KWD, EGP, Euro, OMR and GBP are monitored on a continuous basis
and the Group uses forward currency contracts to eliminate significant currency exposures if required.
A strengthening or weakening of these currencies by 1% against all other currencies would not have a material effect to the
measurement of the Group’s financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and would not have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated equity and its consolidated profit and loss.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest bearing
obligations with floating interest rates.

•
•

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value hierarchy levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priced)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
33. Segmental analysis
The Group has two reportable segments, as described below. Reportable segments offer different products and services and are
managed separately because they require different technology and operational marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business
units, the Group’s executive management reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segment:
Agri Business Division (“ABD”)
– Flour and Animal Feed includes manufacturing and distribution of flour and animal feed.
Consumer Business Division (“CBD”)
– Bottled Water and Beverages include manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, water based drinks and juices. The Group’s
business operations with a similar nature of Bottled Water are as follows:
•
•

As at the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:
2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

•
•

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

561,590

465,061

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

595,582

520,061

•

Business operations in the Republic of Turkey, represented by Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi,
is production, bottling and sale of bottled water;
Business operations in the United Arab Emirates, represented by, Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC, is manufacturing
and distribution of drinking water;
Part of United Arab Emirates business operations, represented by Al Ain Food & Beverages PJSC, is manufacturing and
distribution of drinking water, flavored water, and juices;
Business operations in the State of Kuwait, represented by Al Rammah National for General Trading and Contracting Company
WLL, is manufacturing and distribution of drinking water; and
Business operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, represented by Delta Bottled Water Factory Company Limited, is
manufacturing and distribution of drinking water.

The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is not materially different from their carrying amount.
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33. Segmental analysis continued

33. Segmental analysis continued

– Food includes manufacturing and distribution of tomato and chili paste, fruit concentrate, frozen vegetables, fresh dairy products
and frozen baked products. The Group’s business operations with a similar nature of Food are as follows:

Reconciliation of reportable segments’ profit or loss for the year is as follows:

•
•

Business operations in the Arab Republic of Egypt, represented by Agthia Group Egypt LLC, is processing and sale of tomato
paste, chili paste, fruit concentrates, and frozen vegetables; and
Part of the business operations in the United Arab Emirates, represented by Al Ain Food & Beverages PJSC, is manufacturing
and distribution of yogurt, tomato paste, frozen vegetables, frozen baked products and trading products.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit, as
included in the internal management reports data reviewed by the Group’s executive management. Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative
to other entities that operate within these industries.

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Total profit for reportable segments
Unallocated amounts
Other operating expenses
Net finance (expense)/ income

205,316

286,739

Profit for the year
Non-controlling interests

136,002
1,024

206,564
3,932

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

137,026

210,496

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

(68,257)
(1,057)

(80,451)
276

Reconciliation of reportable segments’ gross profit for the year is as follows:
Agri Business Division
(ABD)
Flour and
animal feed
2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Consumer Business Division
(CBD)
Bottled water
and beverages
2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Food
2019
AED’000

CBD Total
2018
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Total segments
2018
AED’000

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Revenues
Intra-group

900,935 910,732 911,830 904,934 257,061 211,295 1,168,891 1,116,229 2,069,826 2,026,961
(9,263)
– (11,791) (15,399) (9,509) (10,246)
(21,300)
(25,645)
(30,563)
(25,645)

External revenues

891,672

910,732 900,039 889,535 247,552

Gross profit

204,073

212,681 419,892 440,817

Reportable segment
profit
117,831
Material
non-cash item
Impairment losses
on trade
receivables, net

5,093

123,693

2,718

81,180

24,361

157,222

459

201,049

1,147,591

40,439

39,965

460,331

480,782

664,404

693,463

6,305

5,824

87,485

163,046

205,316

286,739

390

Agri Business Division (“ABD”)

Others:
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Capital expenditure

–

1,090,584 2,039,263

24,751

459

Consumer Business Division (“CBD”)

Total gross profit for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts

664,404
(7,435)

693,463
(7,934)

Gross Profit for the year
Non-controlling interests

656,969
(4,199)

685,529
560

Gross profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

652,770

686,089

2019
AED’000

2018
AED’000

Segment Assets
Agri Business Division
Consumer Business Division

565,356
1,552,100

589,595
1,454,402

Total assets for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts

2,117,456
1,003,780

2,043,997
919,524

Total assets

3,121,236

2,963,521

Segment Liabilities
Agri Business Division
Consumer Business Division

160,672
416,536

171,609
269,971

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts

577,208
554,308

441,580
570,221

1,131,516

1,011,801

2,001,316

29,844

3,177

Total Segments

31 December
2019
AED’000

31 December
2018
AED’000

31 December
2019
AED’000

31 December
2018
AED’000

31 December
2019
AED’000

31 December
2018
AED’000

565,356
160,672
12,463

589,595
171,609
6,248

1,552,100
416,536
86,515

1,454,402
269,971
89,150

2,117,456
577,208
98,978

2,043,997
441,580
95,398

Reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets and liabilities are as follows:

Total liabilities

Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, finance income and expense, depreciation, and capital expenditure are as follows:
2019
Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

Gross profit
Finance income
Finance expense
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Capital expenditure
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664,404
166
(982)
104,978
98,978

Unallocated
AED’000

(7,435)
20,851
(21,239)
1,936
8,802

2018
Consolidated
totals
AED’000

Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

656,969
21,017
(22,221)

693,463
104
(2,087)

106,914
107,780

101,456
95,398

Unallocated
AED’000

(7,374)
23,410
(22,633)
3,124
4,358

Consolidated
totals
AED’000

686,089
23,514
(24,720)
104,580
99,756
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